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Treasurer’s Report

A B R

Report of the Treasurer to the Council on the Group’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial
Year from 1 July 2007 to 30 June 2008

Overview

Under the leadership of the new President, the Institute is moving at
full speed to develop into a regional education centre and to achieve
university status. A significant number of initiatives as set out in
the Development Blueprint to strengthen the Institute’s academic
strength and research profile are being carried out. Renowned
scholars from around the world have recently been recruited, and top-
notch research centres will soon be set up to strengthen cooperation
with overseas institutions. Students’ overseas learning experiences will
also be enhanced, and service and civic/citizenship education will be
strengthened. Apart from bolstering the Institute’s academic, research
and students’ profile, various changes to improve the efficiency and

effectiveness of the governance structure are also underway.

To implement these initiatives and changes, the Institute has
earmarked more than $200 million from its General and Development
Reserve Fund (‘Reserves”), which has been accumulated through
prudent financial management over the past years in response to the
reduction in UGC Block Grants. In the current financial year, a total of
about $53 million has been transferred from the Reserves to support

these initiatives and changes.

A review of actual student numbers as compared with the UGC
approved targets for the 2005-08 triennium was carried out, and
an adjustment to the amount of grants received was made in the
current year, which negatively affected the Reserves. Nonetheless,
the Reserves remained at a healthy level of $480 million as at 30 June
2008, after taking into account the various initiatives, changes and

adjustments.
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Academic Programmes and Student Numbers

The total UGC-funded student number in Full-Time Equivalent (“FTE")
terms studying at the Institute as at June 2008 reduced by 3.4%
from 2006/07 to about 4,059 FTE. The decrease occurred mostly
in in-service certificate programmes in Early Childhood Education
("ECE") and other professional development programmes. While the
student numbers at the degree level remained at a level similar to last
year (2,673 FTE students in 2007/08), there was an increase of about
24% to 519 FTE students at the post-graduate level. Other than the
UGC-funded programmes, there were 361 FTE students enrolled in
the Certificate of Kindergarten Education, a programme which was

commissioned by the Education Bureau.

Among the non UGC-funded programmes, the Master of Education
continues to be popular with an intake of 242 students. Total FTE
increased to 239 FTE students, 50 FTE up on last year and the Doctor of
Education recorded an admission of 18 students. A total of 43 Mainland
students were enrolled in these two higher degree programmes in
2007/08 and in addition, the Institute will proactively strengthen its
cooperation with overseas universities, including Cambridge University,

to offer Master's and Doctoral degree programmes.
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Student Enrolment Statistics for the Year 2005/06, 2006/07 and 2007/08
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Regionally, the Institute would form its first collaboration at
postgraduate level with a Mainland university, the South China Normal
University, to exchange teachers, researchers, and postgraduate
students with mutual credit recognition. Three new self-funded
programmes were also launched in September 2008, namely the
Master of Arts in Chinese Studies (Language Education), Master of Arts
in Teaching Chinese as an International Language, and Bachelor of
Music in Education (Honours). The numbers of students enrolled in
these new programmes for 2008/09 were 30, 30, and 33 respectively.

The HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited
continues to offer the Yi Jin programmes, with about 1,508 FTE
students, and the Pre-Associate Degree and Associate Degree
programmes with about 333 FTE students in 2007/08.

Income and Expenditure

The Institute had adopted the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard ("HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in the 2005/06 financial year. Further updates
from HKFRS were also incorporated into the Financial Statements for
this year. For details of the changes in accounting policy in relation to
the new standards, please refer to Note 2 of the Consolidated Financial

Statements of the Institute.
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Income

Apart from a reduction of about $67 million in UGC Block Grants, the
Institute also experienced a slight decrease in subventions from the
UGC earmarked grants and from the other government agencies
for the Group compared to the 2006/07 level. However, Tuition,
Programmes and Other Fees had increased by $23 million, and of
this, about $7 million and $16 million came from UGC-funded and
non-UGC funded programmes or courses respectively. Within the
non-UGC funded income, sub-degree level programmes and courses
contributed significantly to the increase.

Investment and interest income reported as “Other Gains — net” increased
by $7 million to $59 million in spite of decreasing interest rates since
the beginning of the financial year. The increase was mainly attributable

to the early redemption of certain structured notes during the year.

Expenditure

The expenditure of the Institute had increased by $152 million to
a total of about $1,048 million for the year. The increase was mainly
due to an adjustment in grants of $62 million, which related back to
2005/06 and 2006/07 was recognised as expenses in accordance
with the HKFRS under Instruction and Research. Expenditure on
Management and General was contained at last year's level. An
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increase of about $8 million in Student and General Education Services
was mainly attributable to an increase of $4 million in scholarships,
bursaries and prizes to students as well as other extra-curricular
activities. As for the extra-curricular activities, a significant increase of
88% compared to the previous year was spent mainly on new initiatives
to foster active learning and all-round development of students. These
initiatives included subsidising overseas learning experiences, non-
teaching work internship programmes, Study Tour Organisers Award

Scheme, and Academic Empowerment Project, etc.

Superannuation Scheme

Membership of The Hong Kong Institute of Education Superannuation
Scheme (“Superannuation Scheme”) stood at 350 and the Scheme had
total net assets of about $391million as at 30 June 2008. During the

year, 76 contract staff members joined the Superannuation Scheme.

In addition, a total of 816 members of staff participated in the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme with an approximate total net

asset value of about $62 million as at 30 June 2008.

Outlook

“Education Matters”. With the increasing number of students who
select the Institute’s programmes among their top choices in the Joint
Universities Programmes Admission System (up 44% from last year),
the idea that "Hong Kong needs a University of Education” seems well
accepted by the community. Along the path to becoming a university
of education, the Institute not only aims to be a key education
research centre for Hong Kong and the Mainland, but also a research

development network in the region.

With the new faculty structure established in September 2008, the
newly appointed Chair Professors and Professors will be fully on board
before February 2009, and the Institute is reinvigorated to positively
facing changes and challenges ahead. The year 2009 will be the 15th
anniversary of the Institute, and at the same time the 70th anniversary
of The Northcote College of Education, the first college of education
in Hong Kong. The history of teacher training has over time evolved
into the training of whole-person development. | am confident that
the Institute will continue to evolve and meet the changing needs of
education now and into the future. By becoming a leading university
of education in the region, and helping to transform Hong Kong
into an education hub by bringing together the best of the East and
the West, the Institute is poised to make an important and lasting

contribution to the education of future generations to come.
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Seven years statistics of the Institute B %t F &8 F

UGC-funded Student Numbers by Type of Education Sectors (in FTE)
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Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of the
Hong Kong Institute of Education

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong
Kong Institute of Education (the “Institute”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 10 to 56, which comprise
the consolidated and Institute balance sheets as at 30 June 2008, and
the consolidated and Institute income and expenditure statement,
consolidated statement of changes in fund balances and consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Council’s responsibility for the
financial statements

The Council of the Institute is responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with the Ordinance of the Institute, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

8 The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2007/2008
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Institute and of the Group as at 30
June 2008 and of the deficit of the Institute and of the Group, and the
cash flows of the Group for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 4 December 2008
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EE# B £63

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Bt 5 B85} » BrE & BB BE(T)

Balance Sheet
& AEE

As at 30 June 2008 —ZEZN\FXA=+H

Group £[H Institute 3%
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note $000 $'000 $000 $'000
Bz BETT BT BETT BT
ASSETS &E
Non-current Assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - REREEN 4 2,084,330 2,119,874 2,080,087 2,114,929
Investments ®E 5 1 1 1 ]
Held-to-maturity investments REIEARKRE 7 6,287 36,468 6,287 36,468
Time deposits TEHER 8 6,649 6,389 6,649 6,389
2,097,267 2,162,732 2,093,024 2,157,787
Current Assets REBEE
Held-to-maturity Investments RHEIHARKRE
- current portion - mENERD 7 30,045 178,144 30,045 178,144
Accounts receivable, deposits and FEWERIE « & &
prepayments FERFIE 9 27,989 13,183 28,683 7,910
Financial assets at fair value through BRATFEIERER
profit or loss W REBNTIEEE 10 16,179 122,950 16,179 122,950
Time deposits - current portion TEBATF AR - ENER D 8 703,864 203,283 702,530 203,283
Cash and cash equivalents BEMREEEY 11 506,609 673,562 475,624 664,990
1,284,686 1,191,122 1,253,061 1,177,277
Total Assets EEHE 3,381,953 3,353,854 3,346,085 3,335,064
FUNDS e
Restricted funds BEES 12 38,655 27,390 38,655 27,390
Other funds HEthES 13 762,803 891,603 744,917 876,532
Deferred capital funds RIEEAESD 14 2,083,175 2,118,587 2,079,640 2,114,444
Total Funds HEeBH 2,884,633 3,037,580 2,863,212 3,018,366
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current Liabilities kRBEE
Provision for employee benefits EEEFRE 15 14,162 16,568 13,847 16,568
Borrowings BR 16 5,576 6,870 5,576 6,870
19,738 23,438 19,423 23,438
Current Liabilities RBEE
Accounts payable and accruals FETBRTE K FE AT TR 17 215,639 82,433 203,080 82,857
Provision for employee benefits & B FI#E 15 43,407 50,672 41,975 50,672
Borrowings B3 16 1,294 1,256 1,294 1,256
Deferred income EIEURA 18 217,242 158,475 217,101 158,475
477,582 292,836 463,450 293,260
Total Liabilities =it 497,320 316,274 482,873 316,698
Total Funds and Liabilities HeRBEAE 3,381,953 3,353,854 3,346,085 3,335,064

The notes on pages 14 to 56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

FHHERNAERH i RARE B RER AL

Dr Thomas LEUNG Kwok-fai, B35, )P REEHE L & AEFIES - ATt
Chairman of the Council IRE = £ fF

Prof Anthony Cheung Bing-leung, B8S, )P TRIFRHIT » AEHIEE - AP+
President &

10 The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2007/2008

Treasurer A&

Sarah Wong Man-yee 52
Director of Finance B1T§ERE K

PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, )P HB{E ' SREFIEE - KP4t



THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION ¥ A& £6x
(Allamounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br5BEBA5) + BT & BB BE(T)

Income and Expenditure Statement

W32 5

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z=FZENFAA=THILFE

Group £[H Institute 3Bz
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Kz  B¥TR BT BETT BT
Income ON
Government subventions BT 19 579,510 651,503 556,934 630,931
Tuition, programmes and other fees 28 REMHOKE 20 245,938 222327 181,978 167,595
Other gains - net HibUes - 558 21 59,114 52,158 58,392 51,765
Donations and benefactions BR KRB 22 13,801 27,550 13,026 26,352
Auxiliary services B /8 AR A% 23 24,625 23,255 30,099 28,049
Other income HA 8,058 7,209 17,859 36,096
931,046 984,002 858,288 940,788
Expenditure Xih . 24
Learning and research ﬂg}%ﬁﬂﬁ
Instruction and research R R 635,915 503,648 568,427 462,813
Library EEE 39,152 36,597 39,152 36,597
R
Central computing facilities PR ERERG 53,805 56,195 53,805 56,195
Other academic services H b SHARES 42,449 39,989 42,449 39,989
Institutional support ﬂﬁ%i%
Management and general —RITBREE 65,363 65,662 64,821 66,892
Premises and related expenses & RARRAR 170,530 160,500 168,767 158,837
5 —Aan 2
Student and general education services B4 R —RBE R 41,123 33,302 40,973 33,241
1,048,337 895,893 978,394 854,564
Finance Cost B AR AR 26 244 280 244 280
(Deficit)/surplus for the year HEBAAFEERX
before transfers (&58) | B8 (117,535) 87,829 (120,350) 85,944
Transfers to/(from): HRZE/(H):
Restricted funds EEES 12 10 (39) 10 (39)
Other funds HthES 13 (117,545) 87,868 (120,360) 85,983
(117,535) 87,829 (120,350) 85,944

The notes on pages 14 to 56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FE# 5 b7
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Bt 5B &BFS) + FrE & 5B B B E(T)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

For the year ended 30 June 2008 & Z =T NFAAA=THILFE

Defered
capital Restricted
funds funds
BEEREE BEEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BT BT
(Note 14) (Note 12) (Note 13)
(Ktat14) (Kta12) (FfaE13)
Balance at 1 July 2006 R-BEXFLtA—ABZER 2,153,962 23,219 807,945 2,985,126
Movement in deferred capital funds, net EEEARES B EFEA (35,375) - - (35,375)
Transfer (to)/from income and
expenditure statement =R (2) /it & - (39) 87,868 87,829
Inter-fund transfer HeMER - 4210 (4,210) =
Balance at 30 June 2007 and R-BE2ELFEXRA=THRK
at 1July 2007 —EELFEA—BAZER 2,118,587 27,390 891,603 3,037,580
Movement in deferred capital funds, net RIEEARESHE SR (35412) - - (35/412)
Transfer from/(to) income and
expenditure statement =i () /2R - 10 (117,545) (117,535)
Inter-fund transfer He MR - 11,255 (11,255) -
Balance at 30 June 2008 R-BENEAA=THZER 2,083,175 38,655 762,803 2,884,633

The notes on pages 14 to 56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
FE I NEIM RS BTSRRI AR -

12 The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2007/2008
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(Allamounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br5B#EBA5) + BT & BB BE(T)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

7 Bl 2 i B 4%

For the year ended 30 June 2008 HZ=_FENFRA=THILFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

New time deposits

Redemption of time deposits

Redemption of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Redemption of held-to-maturity investments

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of borrowings

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

EXTDNRERE

BERPELNRSFR

REZDNRERE
BEWX  RENREM
HEMR - REB NS

PSR

BERAHEYIREBK

IREENFTBEEE
LR
& [ B3 TF X

BERATHESRERK

XREIBRITEEE
BOSH=2HARE
FEUA
B UA

Note
HizE

27(a)

27(b)

REEE (FrA) IMSREFER

MBEEBHNRERE

BB AR FR

RERBASSEYN (BD) /1B I0FE

FNRE RS EEY
FROFRERASEEY

The notes on pages 14 to 56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F+ImE I NERM R E B RRAAEK I -

ERHEZKE2007/2008H B WM E

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
BT T BT T
32,133 141,787
32,133 141,787
(33,094) (33,417)
112 26
(9,974) (39,233)
(503,759) (147,377)
3,000 208,674
128,460 164,805
176,020 66,000
41,580 50,761
69 -
(197,586) 270,239
(1,500) (1,500)
(1,500) (1,500)
(166,953) 410,526
673,562 263,036
506,609 673,562

13



THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION HE# B Efx
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (b5 B %B5h + BT & BB B EE(T)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 A M it

2.1

14

General information

The Hong Kong Institute of Education (‘Institute”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are to provide teacher education and
facilities for research into and the development of education. In
addition, the Group also plans, establishes and manages non-
profit making schools or education institutions to advance the

cause of education.

The registered address of its office is at 10 Lo Ping Road, Tai Po,

New Territories, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been

approved for issue by the Council on 4 December 2008.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group are set out as below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS”),
applicable individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards

a collective term that includes all

("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
("HKICPA"),

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the guidelines

of Certified Public Accountants accounting
set out in the Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice
adopted by the Higher Educational Institutions funded by
the University Grants Committee ("UGC") in Hong Kong. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are
carried at fair value.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2007/2008
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2.1

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. Recurrent subventions are granted to the
Institute based on its projection to the future which requires
certain judgement and assumption in respect of student
numbers. The Government and the Institute closely monitor
the projected to actual numbers and will make appropriate
revision to the amount of recurrent subventions in case
of significant difference in student numbers between the
projected and the actual. The adjustment to subventions will
impact the statement of income and expenditure and liabilities
in the period in which such revision is made. Other than that
there are no areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the consolidated financial statements.

(@) Standard and amendment effective from 1 July 2007 and

relevant to the Group’s operations

HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments: Disclosures’, and the
complementary amendment to HKAS 1, “Presentation of
financial statements — Capital disclosures”, are mandatory
for the Group'’s accounting year commencing on 1 July
2007 which the Group has adopted in these consolidated
financial statements. HKFRS 7 introduces new disclosures
to improve the information about financial instruments.
It requires the disclosure of qualitative and quantitative
information about exposure to risks arising from financial
instruments, including specified minimum disclosures
about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including
sensitivity analysis to market risk. The amendment to
HKAS 1 introduces disclosures about the level of an
entity’s capital and how it manages capital. The adoption
of HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 does not
result in any significant change to the Group’s accounting
policies other than certain additional disclosures.

2.1

FHEEFHBORTHE (#)

AR R ()

BT A MBERNGZRE P RRTRE
RETERET G - ENFREEER
ERASEN ST BRBERITEELH
i - EE MBSO ZERBEB YR
RETER - ERFERBEABUELETH
BT AR - BUS MR BERH B4 A
BIER - MBREERMNBEABEE
RER  HEHRB UMM SIFLEZE
7 o PSR AR EFEETHBK
SRMBME © BRI 2O - AR R
WhEEHE e - 08 R
RAMBEHRREERBRMEFT A -

(F) A-FTLF LA BREENAHE
RERB ) B AR R R RIFERT
MBERETR [SRITE  HE IR
SHENBEIR [MBEBRRNE2R -
BABE | MERETSAENE
BT tF LA BRKNSE
FERA MAKEDRALGEER
BT PR - BIEERFBTHRN A
FRNZE2RTAEHNHMKER
T BREAERKESRTAE
ERMEBRAEARNEEENEE
HER  BEEEEERR R
A2 ARMTSARNAERER
BFH NEREmSRAROSR
DT - BETERIE1IRAETT N
BREREAKFNEEME R
MERES - MM BLERIETIRM
GETERERNERT B TIELE
THINEESI  WEEHAEEDN
SERTBREAERES -

ERHBEEFE2007/2008 0 B ML 15



Notes to the Financial Statements B # & W it
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(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br =B &HBAS) - FTE & BB BEN7)

2.

2.1

2.2

16 |

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards (collectively, the “Amendments”)
have been published that are mandatory for the Group’s
annual accounting periods commencing on 1 July 2008
or later. Some of the Amendments are relevant and
applicable to the Group; however, they have not been
early adopted in these consolidated financial statements.
The Group has commenced, but not yet completed, an
assessment of the impact of the applicable Amendments
on its results of operations and financial position. The
management are of the view that the impact on
the consolidated financial statements would not be

significant other than certain additional disclosures.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Institute and its subsidiaries made up to
30 June.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying with a shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when

assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated

from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group entities are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to

ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Institute’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries

are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2007/2008
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.8 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of all the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Institute and Group's entities’ functional and

presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in income and expenditure

statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, are

reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

2.4  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

All items at cost equal to or greater than $20,000 regardless
funding sources are subject to capitalisation for depreciation
over its defined useful lives.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in the income and expenditure statement during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

2. THEEGHBURE &)

2.8 HMEIER

(F) DheeMsBRE %
EERHMEHRRMINIER G

ERZE ﬁEE’JIE%/ﬁi&iﬁ
% ([ThaeE® ) Rt EE -
REMBMRABEZNR AR
B MAEBEERNIDEMIIERE
e o

”?EYLHXF

(Z) RHRME#H
oM 32 5 5% PR 52 5 B 7T H0 FE S 9
HAMEEY - BEESTHELE
B B 34, 225 DA T 36 515 2118 0 5 76
HEEMABNFRETAYES
BORE 34 RUBFE N R P RERD -

FEEWMIER (i A FETIR K
BEBRTREBENVBEE) WA
ER BN THEREN—#

2.4 WYE -~ Rfg KaEt

ME - RIELBMIRELKARRETITE
MARFHREEEIIR - ELRABREEE
ZERBERELNMX -

FIERAEMSITHIALNIER - T
B RREAREENMEL AR TER A
ERFREFEFE

HERARBHEZIAR AR RKEE
M RBEATGEREEAEE - MZEBHN
FXANBER] SEMIGT R - T @ IE %Eéfig
MRHENERRBLEE (GRER) -
BT B R E N ERER - Fﬁ“ﬁ/ﬁ\ﬁt
HERMREXHEBEESEEELANYREF
EREARK R P H

ERBHBER[R2007/2008 M H R & 17



Notes to the Financial Statements B # & W it
THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION &% & £
(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br =B &HBAS) - FTE & BB BEN7)

2.

2.4

2.5

18

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their expected
useful lives or the unexpired period of the lease on a straight-
line basis, whichever is shorter. Depreciation of other property,
plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate cost to their residual values over their

estimated useful lives, as follows:

50 Years
3to 5 Years

- Buildings
- Fixtures and equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in

income and expenditure statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets and
investments in subsidiaries

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed

for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2007/2008
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2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-

evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income and
expenditure statement. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or
loss if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term or if so designated by management. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets if they
are either held for trading or are expected to be realised
within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
presented in the income and expenditure statement in
the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the income and expenditure statement as
part of other income when the Group's right to receive

payments is established.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (continued)

20

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables representing time deposits are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
arise when the Group provides money or services directly to
a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. They
are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. They are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, unless the discounting

effect is insignificant, less provision for impairment.

(©) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are carried at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. If there is objective evidence
that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-
to-maturity investments carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The amount of the loss is

recognised in income and expenditure statement.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions or reference to other instruments that are

substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysis.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2007/2008
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2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Accounts and other receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the terms of the receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate, unless the discounting effect is
insignificant. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in income and expenditure statement. When
areceivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written

off are credited to income and expenditure statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, unless the discounting effect is
insignificant. They are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of liability
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of directly
attributable transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income and expenditure statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Borrowings are classified into current and non-
current liabilities. They are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has unconditional right to defer settlement of the

liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.11 Employee benefits

)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for unutilised annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave

are not recognised until the time of leave.

Superannuation scheme

The Institute has set up a superannuation scheme (the
“Scheme”) to provide its employees with benefits on

retirement or termination of employment.

Members of the Scheme contribute 5% of their basic
monthly salaries to the Scheme and benefits are paid
to them on their retirement or on leaving employment
subject to certain conditions as stipulated in the Trust
Deed. Contributions to the Scheme are expensed as
incurred and other than those monthly contributions,
the Institute has no further obligation for the payment of

termination or retirement benefits of its employees.

Mandatory provident fund scheme

The Group has established mandatory provident fund
schemes (“MPF scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF scheme are held in separate trustee-administered
funds. Both the Group and the employees are required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a maximum of $1,000 per employee per month. The
Group's contribution to the MPF scheme is expensed as
incurred.

2.12 Provisions

22

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present

legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle

the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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2.12

2.13

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision
is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Revenue recognition

Recurrent subventions and grants are recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systemic
basis, based on the assumption that the conditions of the

recurrent subventions can be met.

Government subventions and grants, which are earmarked for
specific purposes, are initially recognised as deferred income
when there is a reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attached to it and that the subventions will
be received. They are recognised in the income and expenditure
statement on a systematic basis to match with the related costs

for which they are intended to be used.

Government subventions and grants, and donations spent
on capital expenditure are recorded as deferred capital funds
and are released and credited to the income and expenditure
statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets when the assets are put in use, to the
extent of the related depreciation expense for that period.

Grants from government agencies for courses are recognised
when services are provided and complied with the conditions
attached to it. They are recognised in the income and

expenditure statement over the duration of the courses related.

Tuition programmes and other fees, and auxiliary services
income are recognised on a straight-line basis over the period

of the courses or services to which they relate.
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2.

2.13

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Donations and benefactions are recognised as income when
received or are receivable when the rights of collection can
be established by the Group. Outstanding pledges will not be
recognised as income unless a legal obligation on the donor

can be established by the Group.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and
the effective interest rates. When a receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans is recognised either as cash is collected or on a

cost-recovery basis as conditions warrant.

Receipts of endowments are credited to restricted funds in
the year in which they are received. Income generated from
endowments is recognised in the income and expenditure
statement. Endowments are transferred from restricted funds
and credited to the income and expenditure statement when
the condition for maintenance of the principal amounts has

expired or been waived by donors.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line

basis.

2.14 Operating leases

24

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to income and
expenditure statement on a straight-line basis over the period

of the lease.
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3.1

Financial risk and fund risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate

risk. The Group’s overall risk management procedures focus on

the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@ Market risk

)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group conducts its operation in Hong Kong with
its transactions denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The Group derives its operation income mainly in
Hong Kong dollars.  The Group's foreign currency
exposures arise mainly from and substantially limited
to, the exchange rate movements between Hong Kong
dollars and United States dollars because most of the
financial assets held under treasury investments and
cash balances which are subjected to foreign exchange
movements are denominated in United States dollars.
Since Hong Kong dollars are pegged to United States
dollars under the Linked Exchange Rate System, the
foreign exchange exposure between United States

dollars and Hong Kong dollars is therefore limited.

Most of the financial assets held under treasury
investments as at 30 June 2007 had been redeemed
during the year of 2007/08.

of about $413K is recognised in the income and

As a result, a gain

expenditure statements.

As at 30 June 2008, the financial assets held under
treasury investment are significant to the Group.
However, such foreign exchange exposure does not
have significant impact to the Group, no sensitivity

analysis is performed.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from the
interest-bearing financial assets held under treasury
investments, which are reviewed on a regular basis in
accordance with the Group’s policies and guidelines.
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3.

Financial risk and fund risk management
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

26 |

(a

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued)

Based on the simulations performed at 30 June 2008,
if interest rates on interest-bearing bank deposits
had been 50 basis point higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, deficit for the year would
have been $12K (2007: $5K) lower/higher, as a result of

higher/lower interest income on bank deposits.

All the interest-bearing structured notes held under
treasury investment as at 30 June 2007 had been
redeemed during year 2007/08. As a result, an
investment gain from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximate $10 million in
total is recognised in the income and expenditure

statements during the current year.

The cash flow interest rate risk is considered low as
the Group has no significant interest-bearing financial

liabilities.

The Group's long-term borrowings are non-interest
bearing and although it exposes the Group to fair value
interest rate risk, this does not have adverse impact to
the Group. The management believes that the Group’s
fair value interest rate risk is minimal and no sensitivity
analysis is performed.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. The Group is not
exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its equity
price risk, the portfolio is diversified in accordance with
the limits set by the Group. Given the insignificant
amount of the portfolio of listed equity investments
held by the Group, the management believes that the
Group's equity price risk is minimal.
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3. Financial risk and fund risk management
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its deposits
and cash at banks, accounts receivable and investment
balances with financial institutions. There are procedures
in place to mitigate the risk and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored closely by the management on

an ongoing basis.

Accounts receivable in respect of tuition fees are receivable
by due dates preset every year according to the academic
calendar. The Group has policy of withholding issue of
academic documents to students to enhance the quality
of accounts receivable. The credit risk in investment
balances with financial institutions and deposits and cash
at banks are limited because the counterparties are mainly
banks and financial institutions with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. For banks
and financial institutions, only independently rated parties
with a minimum Moody's rating of “A” are accepted. The
Institute has no significant concentration of credit risk
and the risk exposure is well spread over a large number
of counterparties. The Institute has policies that limit the

amount of credit exposure to any single financial institution.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements

in both short and longer terms.

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available
to meet liabilities as they fall due, and it results from
mismatch of assets and liabilities. The Group performs
regular projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity
risk to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding
requirements could be met. Prudent liquidity management
also includes maintaining adequate credit facilities in the
Group's approved banks.
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3. Financial risk and fund risk management
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
() Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group's and the Institute’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balance
for accounts payable and accruals due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting

is not significant.

3.

3.1

T i R B e R P ()

BRI (#)
(R) RBpEZRR (#&)

TRARKE R NN RERE
ERERBBMESOIHBEMNFIERHA
AR AEREZI IR DT o AT IR
BRERBHARBRASTE - ANEL
ROpEEM - SE12 A RNEH
B FE < BR TR AN e 5T SR IR AR S 70 EL AR TED
(=0

Group ZF&[H

Up to 3 months Over
3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
3EARKT  3EAZE1%F 1TFRE k)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT BT BETT BT
At 30 June 2008 R-BENFAA=THZER
Borrowings =N - 1,500 6,000 7,500
Accounts payable and accruals FERBRIB N FEET 1B 82,449 98,624 898 181,971
82,449 100,124 6,398 189,471
At 30 June 2007 R-BELERA=THZER
Borrowings BX - 1,500 7,500 9,000
Accounts payable and accruals FEBRIA K FERT RUE 50,706 2111 670 53,487
Provision for compensation for
loss of office LEBNHERE 1,943 - - 1,943
52,649 3,611 8,170 64,430

Institute 2Pz

28

Up to 3 months Over
3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
3EARKT  3EAZE1%F 1TFRE k)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETTT BT BETTT BT
At 30 June 2008 R-BENFAA=THZER
Borrowings B3 = 1,500 6,000 7,500
Accounts payable and accruals JEASBRIA K FE AT RUA 70,949 98,571 826 170,346
70,949 100,071 6,826 177,846
At 30 June 2007 RE=BEBLFARA=ZTHZEF
Borrowings BR - 1,500 7,500 9,000
Accounts payable and accruals FE(TBRTE N BT FH 51,857 2111 596 54,564
Provision for compensation for
loss of office REBNHERE 1,943 - - 1,943
53,800 3,611 8,096 65,507
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3.2

3.3

Financial risk and fund risk managemen
(Continued)

Fund risk management

The Group's objectives when managing funds are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to carry out
its mission of providing high quality education to prepare students
as professionals, serving in all types of schools. The Group's overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years. The Group’s practice

is to maintain zero interest-bearing debt.

Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provision of receivables and
payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial

instruments, unless the effect of discounting will be immaterial.
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. y 2L (:4
4.  Property, plant and equipment 4. YE -~ R KAt
Group %[
Leasehold Fixtures and
Buildings improvements equipment
By HEMERE RERREG
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT BT
At 1 July 2006 R-BEXELA-RAZER
Cost [B%N 2,375,923 51,679 245,133 2,672,735
Accumulated depreciation REHHTE (272,929) (22,548) (222,223) (517,700)
Net book amount AREVFE 2,102,994 29,131 22,910 2,155,035
Year ended 30 June 2007 BE-_ZZT+tFAA=1+HLEE
Opening net book amount HYRREFE 2,102,994 29,131 22910 2,155,035
Additions RE 4,196 16,233 12,988 33417
Disposals HE
- cost - AR (507) (7,660) (11,812) (19,979)
- accumulated depreciation - REIRE 483 7,610 11,012 19,105
Depreciation nE (47,570) (8,551) (11,583) (67,704)
Closing net book amount B4R EREFE 2,059,596 36,763 23,515 2,119,874
At 30 June 2007 R-ZBZLHFXA=+AZER
Cost (BN 2,379,612 60,252 246,309 2,686,173
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (320,016) (23,489) (222,794) (566,299)
Net book amount BREFE 2,059,596 36,763 23515 2,119,874
Year ended 30 June 2008 BE-2ZN\EXA=+HLEE
Opening net book amount EAYNBRENFE 2,059,596 36,763 23,515 2,119,874
Additions RE 1,656 10,886 20,552 33,094
Disposals &
- cost - AR = (28) (26,671) (26,699)
- accumulated depreciation - BEHinE - 23 26,522 26,545
Depreciation e (47,614) (9,170) (11,700) (68,484)
Closing net book amount B4R ERE R E 2,013,638 38474 32,218 2,084,330
At 30 June 2008 R-BENFAAZ+HZER
Cost AR 2,381,268 71,110 240,190 2,692,568
Accumulated depreciation Z:HrE (367,630) (32,636) (207,972) (608,238)
Net book amount BREF(E 2,013,638 38,474 32,218 2,084,330
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 4. Y% > R RHFEM 2

Institute Pz
Leasehold Fixtures and
Buildings improvements equipment
By HEMERE BB RRE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T T BT BT
At 1 July 2006 RE-BENFLA—-AZEE
Cost PR A 2,372,096 49,265 239,711 2,661,072
Accumulated depreciation 2EtinE (272,470) (21,080) (217,947) (511,497)
Net book amount AREFE 2,099,626 28,185 21,764 2,149,575
Year ended 30 June 2007 BE-—ZZtEAA=1THLEE
Opening net book amount HYRREFE 2,099,626 28,185 21,764 2,149,575
Re-classification NN
- cost - AR (482) 482 - 3
- accumulated depreciation - BRI E 482 (482) , 3
Transfers (Note a) R (MaEF)
- cost - AR - (7,752) (1,083) (8,835)
- accumulated depreciation - REHINE - 7,699 779 8,478
Additions NE 4,259 15,964 12,473 32,696
Disposals HE
- cost - R (25) (390) (11,629) (12,044)
- accumulated depreciation - ZEtiE 1 390 10,829 11,220
Depreciation e (47,498) (8,069) (10,594) (66,161)
Closing net book amount B AR FHE 2,056,363 36,027 22,539 2,114,929
At 30 June 2007 R-BELFARA=+AZER
Cost B AR 2,375,848 57,569 239,472 2,672,889
Accumulated depreciation REiTE (319,485) (21,542) (216,933) (557,960)
Net book amount BREVFE 2,056,363 36,027 22,539 2,114,929
Year ended 30 June 2008 BE-_ZEEN\FEAA=1THILEE
Opening net book amount HYIBREHE 2,056,363 36,027 22,539 2,114,929
Additions NE 1,656 10,803 20,222 32,681
Disposals &
- cost - R S - (26,194) (26,194)
- accumulated depreciation - BEHinE - = 26,042 26,042
Depreciation e (47,541) (8717) (11,113) (67,371)
Closing net book amount B ARENFE 2,010,478 38,113 31,496 2,080,087
At 30 June 2008 R-BENFAA=ZTHZER
Cost B AR 2,377,504 68,372 233,500 2,679,376
Accumulated depreciation REHiTE (367,026) (30,259) (202,004 ) (599,289)
Net book amount SREFE 2,010,478 38,113 31,496 2,080,087

Notea:  This represents the transfer of property, plant and equipment to the HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited (a subsidiary) at net book
value as at 1 July 2007.
Mzt 7 BEAEE—FTLFLA—ARREFESYF  RERSHERETBHEEGEFBERHEERER AR (BRE—F—HEBRA])
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b.

32

Investments 5. #RE

Group and Institute SEIF0¥BE

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
BETT BEFT
Investments in subsidiaries and institutional entities ~ ZXFEfE KB A R FIR BHIE 218 E& 1 1
Notea: Investments in subsidiaries
The Institute has a 100% (2007: 100%) interest, without investment cost, in the HKIEd Schools Limited which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 14 December
1998 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to plan, establish and manage schools.
The Institute has a 100% interest, without investment cost, in the HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited ("HKIEd SCPE") which was
incorporated in Hong Kong on 28 June 2006 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to set up, maintain and operate, in conjunction
with the Institute, a non-profit making organisation for the promotion and advancement of professional, technical and continuing education, foster and provide
courses leading to awards as well as courses of general interest, and where appropriate, provide learning opportunities in or outside Hong Kong. The HKIEd SCPE
has assumed the responsibilities and mission of the Division of Continuing Professional Education of the HKIEd following the transfer of the related funds, assets
and liabilities from HKIEd taking effect on 1 July 2006.
The results of these subsidiaries are accounted for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Noteb: Investments in institutional entities
The Institute holds 1 share of $500 (2007: 1 share of $500), representing 12.5% of the share capital of the Joint Universities Computer Centre Limited, a company
providing computer services for the UGC - funded Higher Educational Institutions in Hong Kong.
The Institute has a 12.5% (2007: 12.5%) interest, without investment cost, in Joint University Programmes Admissions System (“JUPAS") which was incorporated
on 18 September 1990 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to administer and operate the joint admissions system for and on
behalf of each member of the JUPAS.
The Institute holds a 25% (2007: 25%) interest, without investment cost, in EdExchange Limited which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 March 2005 as
a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to promote education and to provide financial assistance and subsidies for the purposes of
education and training to educational charities, scholarships, fellowships and bursaries in Hong Kong and elsewhere.
The Institute has a 12.5% (2007: 25%) interest, without investment cost, in Joint Quality Review Committee Limited (“JORC") which was incorporated on 26 August
2005 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to provide and implement a peer review framework for the quality assurance of self-
financing, associate-degree programmes in the continuing education units of the members in the JORC.
Given the nature of these institutional entities and their insignificance of the investment costs, the Institute did not account for them in its financial records. In
addition, taking into consideration that there are no significant operations in these institutional entities and they are immaterial to the Group, their results are not
accounted for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
et &7 EH B AR 2 RE
HE B EBHE B ERBRAFZ100% (ZFF+EF  100%) Bz OREREKE) < M RBIR—ANNE+ZA+HAFEEEX T BERER
An] - EAMREE  BUREESR -
HBE 5B EEHE S B R EHE B AR N A ([FHEHEZR ) 2100%Em CRERERZE) « MAGIRZTZLENAZ1T\AEEEX
BREROFAK L RBARAF o B BB RERHBTH I EE—KIFLFIIE - (BEHE - BIlTHEHE - FRTRHEAREZ LR —R AR
R I (FEEERET) BEBEEGINEEHE - FEAEERE ST NFtA—ARAGEBRERNES BEMBREE  BEETHK
BTHREZEXEHE BRI EENED
UL Rl BT R E B RER A BT HRE A -
fet 2 - EREBHEZRE

HberE—REESELGT (Z2T+F - —REEBEERBT) 2 ALHEBIFOERA ARG - HERZRAAIREKZ12.5% * Z 2 A+ E12
HEERE FHESEINE B EHEK -

HEE M EABHEWER ([BEE]) 12.6% (ZFZ+LF  12.5%) #as CRBREAKA) o WRRIR—ANTEFAA+NAK L BERERR
Al o B 82 RBERNGERK S EBMEE S WEAE -

#Br#5H EdExchange Limited 225% (Z—ZFZE+4F : 25%) #m CRERENKAE) c WAFIR-ELEAF=A=+—HAEEEK T ABRIERAF]
HEANAICEHEFE  WIRHM BT EFNMHFESS  UREBNE MM TR EZEEEIRREE S  IAEMHES -

BTt Joint Quality Review Committee Limited ([ZBE 1) 12.5% (ZETHF : 12.5%) #wm CREREKL) - WARIRZEETRFENA=+
NHUBRIERNGEXK L ABERAR - KB 62 8% 8 8AK 8IS 5PI6 8 B REBIE + SRR R AT TRIZ BT HIE ©

AR SR B EIBE L IR EK AT - MBI AU S R RIRCA R TSGR o W) - ET M SR B EEIL R EAA LENH R EBZETK -
HEFIEFERBLALEBRGEEREA
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Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2008

Held-to-maturity investments (Note 7)

Time deposits (Note 8)

Accounts receivable (Note 9)

Security deposits (Note 9)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 10)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11)

Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2007

Held-to-maturity investments (Note 7)

Time deposits (Note 8)

Accounts receivable (Note 9)

Security deposits (Note 9)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 10)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11)

Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2008

Held-to-maturity investments (Note 7)

Time deposits (Note 8)

Accounts receivable (Note 9)

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 9)

Security deposits (Note 9)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 10)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11)

Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2007

Held-to-maturity investments (Note 7)

Time deposits (Note 8)

Accounts receivable (Note 9)

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 9)

Security deposits (Note 9)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 10)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11)

6. Financial instruments by category

LRMEE RE-SIN\E
AA=TENBEEAER

BEIMARE (HH7)

TEHIER (Hf8)

FEMERTE (Kf=9)

REZRSE (H5E9)

BAFEHERREBKS R
BRENGIEEE (HfF10)

ReRELEED (Ma11)

TREE  RE-TTLF
AA=t+HNEERER

FEEMBKE (Kt7)

EMEK (Kfis)

FEURIR (KfE9)

REZE (Hf9)

BAFESIRR BB R
BRI TS EE (HfaE10)

AeMREEEY (Wit11)

THEE  RE-TTN\F
ANA=THNEERER
FEEMPKRE (H7)
EHFR (Kiits)
FEURBRIA (Kfit9)
FEUSFf 8 A R) 2 BUR (Hfit9)
RiERE (Wi9)
BATHESIRRFB BT R
BREMMEERE (H7t10)
RAeRREEEY (Wit11)

SREE  RE-TTLF
AA=T+THNEERER
FEEMBKE (Kt7)
EERK (Kfits)
FEUBRIR (KfE9)
FEULF 8 A R) 2 SR (Kfat9)
RBRE (H29)
BATESIRR BB R
BRIBHB TS AE (HfaE10)
AeLREEEY (Wit11)

6. SR H (1285])
Group &M
Financial assets at Held-to-
Loansand fair value through maturity
receivables profit or loss investments
BAFEEIIR
RiEBWEER
B R R REMIMBEEE [BEIHERE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
- - 36,332 36,332
710,513 - 710,513
28,592 - - 28,592
471 - - 471
- 16,179 - 16,179
506,609 - - 506,609
1,246,185 16,179 36,332 1,298,696
- - 214,612 214,612
209,672 - - 209,672
15171 - - 15171
523 - - 523
° 122,950 - 122,950
673,562 - - 673,562
898,928 122,950 214,612 1,236,490
Institute 3Pz
Financial assets at Held-to-
Loansand fair value through maturity
receivables profit or loss investments
AT EIIAR
RiBBKZR
BERRERR BENUHEE RBEIHPERSE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
- 36,332 36,332
709,179 - 709,179
24,089 - - 24,089
4,400 - - 4,400
464 - - 464
- 16,179 - 16,179
475,624 - 475,624
1,213,756 16,179 36,332 1,266,267
= 214,612 214,612
209,672 - - 209,672
8372 - - 8372
394 - - 394
394 - - 394
= 122,950 - 122,950
664,990 - - 664,990
883,822 122,950 214,612 1,221,384

EBHEZER2007/2008 H | &
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6. Financial instruments by category (Continued)

Group £ Institute 2%
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT EEET T BETT BT T

Financial liabilities as per
balance sheets

THAE REEERER

6. @ TH (#FH) &)

Other financial liabilities Hin B 8B
Provision for compensation for
loss of office (Note 15) KEBAERE (F15115) - 1,943 - 1,943
Accounts payable and accruals (Note 17)  FE{SHBRIB & FE=H 7B (Kia£17) 181,971 53,487 170,346 47,165
Amounts due to a subsidiary (Note 17) eI B AT 2 338 (HfzE17) - - - 7,399
181,971 55,430 170,346 56,507
Borrowings (Note 16) B (MfE16) 6,870 8,126 6,870 8,126
188,841 63,556 177,216 64,633
7.  Held-to-maturity investments 7. FHEIHARE

Group and Institute SEEF1$Fx

Listed, at amortised cost
- listed outside Hong Kong
Unlisted, at amortised cost

Less: Current portion classified as
current assets

Held-to-maturity investments are denominated in the following

currencies:

2008
$’000

BT T

T R SRR

- EBFBUAINET 6,287
FEETH - FRE AR 30,045
36,332
B BRI D ERREEAE (30,045)
6,287

2007
$'000
BETT

6,279

208,333

214,612

(178,144)

36,468

FEIHAREATNINEE [ELL:

Hong Kong dollars
United State dollars

Group and Institute £EEF0HEz

2008
$’000

BT T

R 30,045
T 6,287

36,332
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2007
$'000
BT T
138,215
76,397

214,612



Time deposits 8. EHIFHK

Group ¥£[E Institute 3Pz
2008 2007 2008 2007
$’000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BT T BB T BT T BT T
Time deposits with original maturity JREEH A3 A s A E&Y
over 3 months or above TEHIER
Current portion mENEBD
- Unpledged - RAEHEA 682,864 182,283 681,530 182,283
- Pledged - BEEIRE 21,000 21,000 21,000 21,000
703,864 203,283 702,530 203,283
Non-current portion SEMBNELD 6,649 6,389 6,649 6,389
710,513 209,672 709,179 209,672
The effective interest rate on time deposits with original maturity JREIER B BB 316 A A EREBfFE RN E
over 3 months or above was 3% (2007: 44%); these deposits have BRREE3% (ZTTLF  4.4%) IbE
an average maturity of 168 days (2007: 223 days). GTRFEHEIPE A168H (ZEZELF ¢
223R) °
The pledged time deposits of $15 million and $6 million are used FHERAE —THAEELREEEE
respectively as securities for a loan from the HKSAR Government TTE S BB ERBEITHE BT iR
disclosed in Note 16 and for the Group's bank overdrafts facilities BEReERE (FisE16) - URAEREER
which have not been utilised as at year end (2007: $Nil). FRENARDAMNRTEENER (=
EELF | o
The carrying amounts of time deposits approximate their fair values FEHFRNEMELAEAFERE - WA
and are denominated in the following currencies: TINEE REL:
Group £ Institute %
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BET T BT BET T BT
Hong Kong dollars ki 450,486 201,291 450,310 201,291
United State dollars E7T 254,270 4413 254,270 4413
Australian dollars RIT 525 1,029 - 1,029
Canadian dollars EATT 1,235 1,706 965 1,706
Pound Sterling ReE 363 1,233 - 1,233
New Zealand dollars PRI 3,634 - 3,634 -
710,513 209,672 709,179 209,672
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9.

36 |

Accounts receivable, deposits and 9. BEMHRIE -~ 7 REMFHHE
prepayments
Group £[H Institute $f5x
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Accounts receivable (Note a) FEMBRIE (HfaFF) 28,592 15171 24,089 8372
Less: Provision for impairment (Note b) i : FEURBRIBRIERMS (3t 2) (2,339) (3,723) (1,213) (2,06)
26,253 11,448 22,876 6,266
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Notec) FEUHIB AR Z T (MR ) - - 4,400 394
Security deposits RERS 471 523 464 394
Maximum exposure to credit risk FERBRNZSEE 26,724 11,971 27,740 7,054
Prepayments FEfSFRIA 1,265 1,212 943 856
27,989 13,183 28,683 7910
(@ Accounts receivable (F) FEUERIA
As at 30 June 2008, the Group’s and the Institute’s “EBEENFRA=TH  AEBEK
accounts receivable of $17,625K (2007: $8,808K) and P ) E 8 BB I AR E R FE UK ER IR
$20,247K (2007: $7,054K) were past due but not impaired DRlBEE—FEEATZBRTT
respectively. These mainly relate to a number of students ZTEELF BB NBENTEE
and the Government for whom there is no recent NFL) KBS —FE_+HE LT
history of default. The ageing analysis of these accounts T (ZZETLF - B tLtETHEN
receivable is as follows: Foo) c WERBEES R ZEE4E
MY - b PISa D8 B HRIERG
B o W ERUBRIERRERDITAT ¢
Group £ Institute $F5x
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Past due by: 2 HE
0 -3 months 0-31EA 11,114 5938 14,249 5358
3 -6 months 3-61EA 3,437 1,867 3,244 745
6 — 12 months 6-12 {87 2,284 588 2,245 542
Over 12 months HBi@12 @A 790 415 509 409
17,625 8,808 20,247 7,054
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9. Accounts receivable, deposits and 9.

prepayments (Continued)

(b)  Provision for impairment of accounts receivable

As at 30 June 2008, except for the Group's bad debts
written off directly to the income and expenditure
statement of $28K (2007: $11K), the Group’s and the
Institute’s accounts receivable of $2,339K (2007: $3,723K)
and of $1,213K (2007: $2,106K) were impaired respectively
and full provision has been made accordingly. These

mainly relate to a number of students for whom there are

unexpected difficult economic situations. The ageing of

these receivables is as follows:

JEWHRIE ~ 178 RN ZE (%)

(2)

FENBRIB AR E RS

“EEN\FEXNA=+HH KBTHEE
BAW ST =M AR EBIZREE
—EBNTFTT (ZETLF B8
—F7m) N AEERHEHLEE
AN B AE I 2 2R E R E IR IE 5 B
BB _a=t+=BhT(=ZZZ
+F AR =-FETZE=FT) K
BB+ —8=Trx (ZZTZt
FABBZE—TEATI) - kE
FIRE B RSB IRTER AN B
R EE o W EFREUGREBRER D AT
Ol

Group %M Institute 3z

2008 2007 2008 2007
$’000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BT BT BT BT T

Past due by: BEEH -
0 -3 months 0-31@AR 115 79 115 1
3 -6 months 3-61@A 427 1,123 427 785
6 - 12 months 6-12 1848 596 418 596 226
Over 12 months BiB12 @A 1,201 2,103 75 1,094
2,339 3,723 1,213 2,106

Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts receivable

are as follows:

FEWARTBR R AR BE S I T

Balance at 1 July

Provision for impairment

Receivables written off during
the year as uncollectible

Unused amounts reversed

Balance at 30 June

Group %[ Institute 33

2008 2007 2008 2007

$'000 $'000 $’000 $'000

BT BT BT BT

REtBA—Bz&ERE 3,723 1,837 2,106 828

BB 1,294 2,714 1,213 2,106
F M S BGRIE AT REWE]

HIFRIE (1,959) (662) (1,788) (662)

KAFIEBEREE (719) (166) (318) (166)

RAB=+RZ&R 2,339 3,723 1,213 2,106
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9.

38

Accounts receivable, deposits and 9. EWMUHRI - #z8 REMNHHE &)
prepayments (Continued)
(b)  Provision for impairment of accounts receivable (Contined) (2) BYERIBRYRERE (&)
The Group has recognised a loss of $1,294K (2007: EEEBEE-_ZTN\FAA=THIEF
$2,714K) for the impairment of its accounts receivable EREWERIBRNREBEEE -8 =
during the year ended 30 June 2008. Such loss has been ThBNFT (ZEELF: B =R
mainly included in office expenses under “Instruction and +t+—8NTRT)  WEEBEEFELA
research’, “Management and general” and “Students and WERE [HEBRAR] [ —RITHRE
general education services” in the income and expenditure EIR | M BER—REBRE] R
statement, to the extent of $208K (2007: $886K), $1,052K RERXA BEINABE_TEN
(2007: $1,688K) and $34K (2007:140K) respectively. The Fr (ZZ2Z2+F : BENTNERT
unused impairment provision of $719K was reversed L) B —EERE-TI (ZEEL
and credited to office expenses under “Instruction and F o BE—BATNAEBNTT) B
research’, “Management and general” and “Students and —ENTT(ZESLF - BB T0E
general education services” in the income and expenditure 7o) c RARREREEE T8N
statement, to the extent of $401K (2007: Nil), $276K (2007: TAE RO R ARSI R [ 2 R
$166K) and $42K (2007: Nil) respectively. xR T—RITBHRERE] R824 K —
MHBE RS FRMAERIA - B8
ARAEELTE T (ZTTLF:
B) BE_tEEATEI(ZEZL
F BT REART) REBHEZ
T (ZET+F 8|) -
(©  Amounts due from subsidiaries (R) FEWHIE AR 2B
The amounts due are unsecured and repayable within 30 UL TE R WO R A A2 30 B 1B
days. Except for an amount of $296K (2007: $394K) due B RTEK—IBRRIMNEBE =TI
from a subsidiary which is interest-free, the remaining ENTR (ZZ2ZLF  BE=F &
balance is interest bearing at monthly savings account MF7T) MFIEARRIN - HERFUIEIR
interest rate quoted by bank. RITEAREFRNEAERNE -
The effective interest rate as at year end is 0.25% (2007: REEBNERNER0.25% (ZTE+
2.75%) per annum. F:275%) °
(d) The carrying amounts of accounts receivable, deposits (T) FBUERIE - IR MIEF UERM REE R
and prepayments approximate their fair values and are EAFERE - WATEE BEA
denominated in the following currencies:
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT BT
Hong Kong dollars TR 27,989 12,111 28,683 7,910
Australian dollars JBIT - 1,072 = =
27,989 13,183 28,683 7910

The Group and the Institute do not hold any collateral as security.
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10. Financial assets at fair value through 10. L0 -TAEIIHR B A1 W 3 3R I
profit or loss BB R 5

Group and Institute EEFIHEE

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
BETT BETT
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, at fair value & FigEzmE 5 @ HAVE 9,184 =
Unlisted structured notes and deposits, at fair value 3k F i ZEMFER - 12D TE 5,534 121432
Unlisted investment in unit trust, at fair value EEMBAEFRE - RATE 1,461 1518
16,179 122,950

Note: Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in “Other gains - net” in the income and expenditure statement (Note 21).

Mzt : TR TEIRIEBRSREIENI B EEN N FEZBENZ R PR [ Eibias - FE] (Ha21)

The carrying amounts of financial assets at fair value through profit BEAFEIERERARIREENIMBE
or loss approximate their fair values and are denominated in the ENREEEARQNTEES  LATIE
following currencies: BRENL

Group and Institute SEIFI3BE

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
BT BT
Hong Kong dollars ot 16,179 7,019
United State dollars e - 115,931
16,179 122,950
. Yaray
11. Cash and cash equivalents 11. Bl RBIEFEY
Group £ Institute 3z
2008 2007 2008 2007
$’000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BT BT BT BT
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHERS 23,997 9,585 17,289 6,267
Short-term bank deposits EHIRITER 482,612 663,977 458,335 658,723
506,609 673,562 475,624 664,990
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 1.9% RERITERNERNER1.9% (ZEF
(2007: 4.7%); these deposits have an average maturity of 15 days +F 1 4.7%)  WEFRNFEHEER A
(2007: 32 days). 158 (ZFF+F : 320) °
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. ) Yaray &=
11. Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) 11. Bl RIIEFHEY @)
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are denominated Re KRS EEMHNRMENTIEE A2
in the following currencies: fiI :
Group %E Institute 3%
2008 2007 2008 2007
$’000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BT BEFT BT BEFT
Hong Kong dollars ki 296,763 419,612 267,185 411,040
United State dollars E7T 204,691 247,837 204,691 247,837
Australian dollars SBIT 866 4843 154 4843
Canadian dollars nERT 1,227 563 532 563
Pound Sterling e 1,564 539 1,564 539
New Zealand dollars PR 1,352 168 1,352 168
Japanese Yen = 146 - 146 -
506,609 673,562 475,624 664,990
Maximum exposure to credit risk EERBRK RE AL 506,414 673,397 475,447 664,835
. =
12. Restricted funds 12. RS
Group and Institute HEEFI3E
Unspent
Endowment balance for
funds research
BAEE KEAHEER
$'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BETT
(Note a)
(BfzEH)
Balance at 1 July 2006 R-BEXFELtA-AZERE 18,398 4,821 23219
Transfer to income and expenditure
statement HRERRE (39) - (39)
Inter-fund transfer (Note 13) HEMER (M1:£13) = 4210 4210
Balance at 30 June 2007 and REZBBLEARA=Z+HERK
at 1 July 2007 —EELFELtA-BZ&ER 18,359 9,031 27,390
Transfer from income and expenditure
statement BB W R 10 - 10
Inter-fund transfer (Note 13) HEEMER (f7213) - 11,255 11,255
Balance at 30 June 2008 RESBENEXRA=THZEE 18,369 20,286 38,655
Notea:  The breakdown and movements of endowment funds for the year 2007/08 are analysed as follows:
Ktet B — BB/ ENFEBERE AR FMEB DT -
Balance at Funds Income  Expenditure Transfer  Balance at
1 July 2007 received  fortheyear fortheyear fortheyear 30June 2008
2007F7H1H 200846 H
Z#F  BE2RA FFERA AFEXH XFEER 0HZEF
$000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
BT BT BT BT  BETFT BETFT
Cheung’s Family Charity Fund ERKERS 3,079 - 107 (90) - 3,096
Shun Hing Education and Charity Fund (EEME BrERD 5228 - 214 (255) - 5187
Lady vy Wu Scholarship HAEEA S AEE S 6,040 - 259 (226) - 6,073
Li& Fung Scholarship Fijg sges s 4,012 - 181 (180) - 4,013
Total amount for the year 2007/08 —EE ) E)\EEHEEE 18,359 - 761 (751) - 18,369
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13. Other funds

Balance at 1 July 2006

Transfer from income and
expenditure statement

Inter-fund transfer (Note 12)

Balance at 30 June 2007 and
at 1 July 2007

Transfer (to)/from income and
expenditure statement

Inter-fund transfer (Note 12)

Balance at 30 June 2008

R-BEANFLA-RAZERE

R AKRSR
HEeMER (MZ12)

REZZZ2LFXRAZTHEHR
“ERLELA-HZER

(2 /ARx R
EMEK (H212)

R-BENEANA=THZERE

13. HAzEs
Group £H
General and Other Donations
development operation and
reserve fund reserves benefactions
— R RER
fREEE HOBERE BRI KB
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT BT T BETT BETT
620,758 151,132 36,055 807,945
25,684 44,674 17,510 87,868
(5422) 1,339 (127) (4,210)
641,020 197,145 53,438 891,603
(150,032) 30,084 2,403 (117,545)
(10477) (576) (202) (11,255)
480,511 226,653 55,639 762,803

Balance at 1 July 2006

Transfer of funds to the HKIEd SCPE

Transfer from income and
expenditure statement
Inter-fund transfer (Note 12)

Balance at 30 June 2007 and
at 1 July 2007

Transfer (to)/from income and
expenditure statement

Inter-fund transfer (Note 12)

Balance at 30 June 2008

R-BEAFLA-RAZER

ERERXR

EoMER (fat12)

REZEZRLFAA=ZTHEHR
—RRLELA-HAZER

B () /ARXER

Ao MER (HaE12)
R-BENERA=THZER

Institute 3%
General and Other Donations
development operation and
reserve fund reserves benefactions
—RRER
fREEE HbZERE HER KB
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT BT T
620,758 145,802 36,055 802,615
- (7,591) (265) (7,856)
25,684 42,818 17,481 85,983
(5422) 1,339 (127) (4,210)
641,020 182,368 53,144 876,532
(150,032) 27176 2,496 (120,360)
(10477) (576) (202) (11,255)
480,511 208,968 55,438 744917
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14. Deferred capital funds 14. BEHEERIE S
Group £H Institute 3%
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $'000 $000 $'000
BT BT BT BT
Balance at 1 July RtA—Bz&F 2,118,587 2,153,962 2,114,444 2,148,810
Representing: HER :
Buildings BF 2,059,595 2,102,932 2,056,364 2,099,627
Leasehold improvements THEMERE 36,461 28,936 36,027 28,131
Fixtures and equipment B N 22,531 22,094 22,053 21,052
2,118,587 2,153,962 2,114,444 2,148,810
Increase in capital funds earned BRSHEEESEM
Buildings BF 1,656 4,259 1,656 4259
Leasehold improvements HEMERE 10,803 15,964 10,803 15,964
Fixtures and equipment KEREHE 20,146 12,330 20,046 12,220
32,605 32,553 32,505 32,443
Release to income and
expenditure statement BEE ST &
Buildings BT (47,614) (47,596) (47,541) (47,522)
Leasehold improvements THEMERE (9,088) (8,439) (8,717) (8,068)
Fixtures and equipment B KR (11,315) (11,893) (11,051) (11,219)
(68,017) (67,928) (67,309) (66,809)
Balance at 30 June RARA=+HZ&R
Buildings EF 2,013,637 2,059,595 2,010,479 2,056,364
Leasehold improvements THEER R 38,176 36,461 38,113 36,027
Fixtures and equipment HENREE 31,362 22,531 31,048 22,053
2,083,175 2,118,587 2,079,640 2,114,444
. . NN
15. Provision for employee benefits 15. 1B B 3
Group %M Institute 3z
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $'000 $000 $'000
BT BT BT BT
Staff costs: BB :
Compensation for loss of office LEBMNANEE - 1,943 - 1,943
Unutilised annual leave REEHFR 28,740 33,192 27,938 33,192
Gratuities HmeE 28,829 32,105 27,884 32,105
57,569 67,240 55,822 67,240
Payable: JERTERIA
Within 1 year —F RN 43,407 50,672 41,975 50,672
After 1 year —1& 14,162 16,568 13,847 16,568
57,569 67,240 55,822 67,240
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16. Borrowings 16. Hsk

Group and Institute £EEF0HEE

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
BYTT BETT
Long-term loan, secured REEZ - 5K 6,870 8,126
Less: Current portion classified as current liabilities & : EBIEB DD EARBBE (1,294) (1,256)
5,576 6,870
The maturity of long-term loan is as follows: REESFHIBHBENAT :
Within 1 year —FR 1,294 1,256
Between 1 and 2 years —FEZFNA 1,333 1,294
Between 2 and 5 years —FERFA 4,243 4,120
Over 5 years FFAE - 1,456
6,870 8,126
Note: The HKSAR Government agreed to provide a loan of $15 million to the Institute to meet start-up costs of self-financing accredited post-secondary programmes

(e.g. Associate Degree Programmes). The loan is non-interest bearing, repayable in equal annual installments over a period of 10 years from June 2004 and is
secured by the Institute’s bank deposits of $15 million disclosed in Note 8.

The carrying values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on then effective market borrowing rate of 3.0% and all denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The fair value of borrowings approximates their carrying value for financial years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007.

fiax . BERSITTREBREE MHGIEES —THABITER - UX VB ARBHZAIE LRIZ (RIS 87) fIFHER - ZEATEHFE - A
ZEEMFENARED +FGFSHERE - A B — T A A BRI TR EREA - WH 8K E

FREERER 2 RE N BB BRI S EAFIE3. 0% RAE - 2ELETRELNL
BE—FENEFR_FFLFNA=TAUMBFE - BRI AFEERREEREE

L)
17. Accounts payable and accruals 17. WEMTHRIT R JE kA
Group ¥ Institute #fx
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BET T BB T BET T BB
Accounts payable e BRIA 128,918 29,253 124,756 24,669
Accruals FEEHFRIA 50,507 22,125 43,044 20,387
Amount due to a subsidiary ERHB AR Z A - - - 7,399
Other deposits Hibig® 2,546 2,109 2,546 2,109
Other provisions HAb B 8,136 8,612 8,012 8,612
Receipt in advance U IR 25,532 20,334 24,722 19,681
215,639 82,433 203,080 82,857
(@ The carrying amounts of accounts payable and accruals (F) BEZZZNER_FZLF A=
approximate their fair values for both financial years ended THIEMESBRFE - BRAERBERE
30 June 2008 and 2007. AHRESREERE AFEMES -
(b) Included in accounts payable, provision of $97 million is () BNERERBELOEENLTLAETY
subvention payable to the Government. BRERENTBRNHEES -
(© The amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest (R) ERWEARZRIEREER - &R
bearing at monthly savings account interest rate quoted TEABEERNEFENE - WA
by bank and repayable within 30 days. MRI0AAMEE o
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(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (Br =B &HBAS) - FTE & BB BEN7)

17. Accounts payable and accruals (Continued)

17. WEATHRIE R (4)

(d) Accounts payable and accruals are denominated in the (T) ENERBEREFHREATIE® RE

following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars B
United State dollars e
Australian dollars SRIT
Renminbi AR
New Zealand dollars PRI
Japanese Yen H

Miscellaneous Hibh &

18. Deferred income

7 :

Group $H Institute 3%
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT BT T
214,258 82,099 201,699 82,545
934 75 934 75
- 163 - 163
219 43 219 43
182 22 182 -
26 - 26 -
20 31 20 31
215,639 82,433 203,080 82,857

18. ZEHERA

Group % Institute 3z

2008 2007 2008 2007

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BT T BT BT T BT

Balance at 1 July RtA—B2&E 158,475 87,066 158,475 87,066

Subventions, grants and donations B/ KBS - BER

received/receivable IEEE 606,511 705,042 593,781 694,326
Recognised during the year AEE AR (515,139) (601,080) (502,650) (590,474)
Transferred to deferred capital funds HRZFTEEAES (32,605) (32,553) (32,505) (32,443)
Balance at 30 June RARB=t+HZ&ERF 217,242 158,475 217,101 158,475

Balance representing:
Institute
Earmarked grants
- Research
- Immersion
- Home Finance Scheme
- Housing-related benefits other than Home
Finance Scheme
- Development of New Undergraduate Program under
3+3+4 academic structure
- Others
Capital grants and Alterations, Additions, Repairs and
Improvements Block Allocation
Grants from government agencies

Subsidiary
Earmarked grants
- Others

Group

Group and Institute SEF03EE

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
BT T BT
FERRERINTE ¢
Hb
TR B
- TR 5,798 3,699
SR 36,969 29,767
- BT A BIEH & 96,925 64,565
- EEFTEBEIZ EERFEE L 15,334 11,954
SBR[ == S ASHRE T E 14,214 14,900
- Hpth 29,909 28,539
ERBRRSGE - N2 - #EREEIRE
E 15,026 2,461
BRATHE I 7 3R 2,926 2,590
217,101 158,475
HE AR
FEERRK
CE# 141 -
=@ 217,242 158,475
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19. Government subventions

19. BUH 5k

Group £ Institute 2%
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT BT T BETT
Subventions from UGC HEGER
Block / Recurrent grants BEEHER 369,054 435,663 369,054 435,663
Earmarked grants ETERR 68,551 91,849 68,551 91,849
Home Finance Scheme EFTEBET & 32,199 36,973 32,199 36,973
Matching grant EREE BB 6,210 21,799 6,210 21,799
Replacement Town Centre HEMEIK 9,533 9,591 9,533 9,591
Earmarked for pension top-up HEMBRK S 5,708 6,062 5,708 6,062
Earmarked language immersion
programmes R B XUTIR B2 4,405 6,546 4,405 6,546
Matching grant for internationalising S NBBIBR I EEER
the student population BE 1,246 2,185 1,246 2,185
Research projects ficIER 3,434 2314 3,434 2314
Teaching Development Grant projects — Z{Z3 3[R B KT8 - 207 - 207
Institutional advancement projects HPTthREET 2 23 402 23 402
Housing-related benefits other than FEMENEIZERE
Home Finance Scheme fBFFERE S 1,032 1,069 1,032 1,069
Restructuring and collaboration fund HEREEBIEES
- academic restructure - 2ifrE 2,379 3,940 2,379 3,940
Restructuring and collaboration fund BRERHIEES
- Project 4Y -4YIEH 961 - 961 -
Upgrading of Language Teaching &
Learning Facilities EEHEREBREHAR 315 - 315 -
Development of the New
Undergraduate Program BRMB L RIETE 686 - 686 -
Promoting outcome-based approaches & AR RUA A 75% 164 - 164 -
Other earmarked grants Hib e FER 256 761 256 761
Government rent and rates refund 3R [ FH Ko 2= A 7,079 7,321 7,079 7321
Capital grants and Alterations, EEB R MEGE - N
Additions, Repairs and Improvements HIE RS TR
Block Allocation [kt 54,028 53,060 54,028 53,060
498,712 587,893 498,712 587,893
Grants from government agencies BT ER R 80,798 63,610 58,222 43,038
579,510 651,503 556,934 630,931
20. Tuition, programmes and other fees 20. Z# - FEAHMBWE
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BETT BT BETT
UGC - funded programmes BESEYRE
Tuition fee 25 141,142 135,131 141,142 135,131
Programmes and other fees e R HAb U E 8,097 7211 8,097 7211
Non UGC - funded programmes FHESEBRE
Tuition fee 25 78,163 66,430 19,080 17,997
Programmes and other fees A R H AW B 18,536 13,555 13,659 7,256
245,938 222,327 181,978 167,595

ERHELEKE2007/2008H B WM E
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21. Other gains - net 21. HAfias - #0

Group ¥H Institute #fx

2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT BETIT BETT BT

Investment gain from financial REEBEAFEYRRER

assets at fair value through profit Yok RERIR KT A
orloss BIR & e 12,127 6,599 12,127 6,599
Dividend gain & Sz 69 - 69 -
Interest income FEWA 46,918 45,559 46,196 45,166
59,114 52,158 58,392 51,765

. . CEA =}
22. Donations and benefactions 22. AR RARY)
Group %[ Institute 3z

2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT BET T
Capital projects HiEIEA 2,373 2,690 2,373 2,690
Scholarships, prizes and bursaries RES WEMNPB2S 2,156 2,040 2,106 1,980
Donations for academic activities HERMTEEN AR 9,272 22,820 8,547 21,682
13,801 27,550 13,026 26,352

46

The HKSAR Government has launched the Third and Fourth
Matching Scheme for UGC-funded institutions to match the
donations secured by them. Donations pledged and paid to
the Institute between July 2006 and March 2007 and between
January 2008 and February 2009 respectively are eligible for
such matching grants.
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22.

Donations and benefactions (Continued) 22.

As at 30 June 2008, the related income and expenditure

incurred for the donations eligible for matching grants are

shown below:

Balance at 1 July
Income

Matching grants
Matched donations
Interest and investment income

Expenditure

Academic strength and niche area development
Teaching and research enhancement

Scholarships, prizes and bursaries
Internationalisation and student exchange activities
Student development

Capital projects

Others

Balance at 30 June

the matching grants are shown below :

Balance at 1 July
Income

Matching grants
Matched donations
Interest and investment income

Expenditure

Academic strength and niche area development
Teaching and research enhancement

Scholarships, prizes and bursaries
Internationalisation and student exchange activities
Student development

Others

Balance at 30 June

RtRA—BN&RE
A
SEEDD
FEBR
BRI E WA

i
B ERESNER
BB RTART
REe  RENPRL
B L RSB AERIEE)
BLRH
BARIRE
Hit

RAA=THNER

As at 30 June 2007, the related income and expenditure incurred for

REtA—HNER
YA

FEMHE
FEHBR

MERILEWA

X
B ERAENER
BERHTRTT
B SR R B
B4R
Hth

RAA=tTHENER

HH R (&)

HE-TT\FAASTAL  BAEK

Group and Institute SEFIHEE

Matching

Grants

L SE
$'000
BT T
70,268

BE-TTLEAA=+HI
SHBBRARE HEEMT

Matched
Donations

BN
$'000
BT

54,146

6,284
1478

7,762

5613
197
1,321
1,055
222

61

8,469

53,439

FHEMY

Group and Institute SEF0HPE

Matching

Grants

FRmE
$'000
BETT

51,029

21,817

2817

24,634

3,185
743
1,096

293
78

5395

70,268

ERHEZ;E2007/2008H B WM E

Matched
Donations

HHIBR
$'000
BETIT

38,263

21,817
2,901

24,718
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23. Auxiliary services 23. MWiiefes
Group £ Institute 3z
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT T BT BT T
Student hostels BERES 19,554 17,735 19,676 17,735
Rental income AU A
- Operating lease -EEHE 557 962 557 962
- Others - Hpth 1,553 1,875 6,904 6,672
Rental contribution from staff B EMHEHGK 2,622 2227 2,622 2227
Others HAth 339 456 340 453
24,625 23,255 30,099 28,049
24. Expenditure 24, Xt
2008 Group [H
Employee
benefits Operating
expenses expenses Depreciation 2008 Total
EEEF
B EEMX e 2008 8%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BT BT
(Note 25)
(Mtat2s)
Learning and research BERMR
Instruction and research HERHRE 469,232 164,655 2,028 635,915
Library e 22,305 16,087 760 39,152
Central computing facilities R B SRR 32,269 18,054 3,482 53,805
Other academic services H fth E290T AR A 36,580 5,799 70 42449
560,386 204,595 6,340 771,321
Institutional support P& (Note 24a)
(HizE245F)
Management and general —RAITH R E R 55,378 9,894 91 65,363
Premises and related expenses Ra& RAAER 27,859 80,727 61,944 170,530
Students and general education
services B4 R —RRHE RS 16,424 24,590 109 41,123
99,661 115,211 62,144 277,016
Total expenditure 2008 —EE\ELHEE 660,047 319,806 68,484 1,048,337
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24. Expenditure (Continued)

Learning and research
Instruction and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support

Management and general

Premises and related expenses

Students and general education
services

Total expenditure 2007

Learning and research
Instruction and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support
Management and general
Premises and related expenses

Students and general education
services

Total expenditure 2008

HERTE
HERR
B
R ERERDE
Hoth 21 AR 7%

<&

—RITBRERE
& RARRER

B4R —RHE RS

—ERLEXHAE

HERHE
HRERFR
(B
PR E RN
H 1t AT AR #%5

i % %

—RRAITRRER
R& RERFM X

B —REE RS

—EENEFXHAE

24. SFH

2007 Group EH

Employee
benefits Operating
expenses expenses Depreciation 2007 Total
EEER
k-3 EERX /il 2007 488
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT BHTT BETT BHTT
(Note 25)
(Bfat 25)

415,694 85,145 2,809 503,648
20,382 15,696 519 36,597
30,118 22,012 4,065 56,195
34,451 5477 61 39,989

500,645 128,330 7454 636,429

(Note 24a)

(BizF24F)
47,480 18,093 89 65,662
26,562 73,844 60,094 160,500
14,836 18,399 67 33,302
88,878 110,336 60,250 259,464
589,523 238,666 67,704 895,893

2008 Institute 3Bz

Employee
benefits Operating
expenses expenses Depreciation 2008 Total
EEEF
252 EERX /g 2008 #8528
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETFT BETT BT BT
(Note 25)
(Kz 25)

431,470 136,042 915 568,427
22,305 16,087 760 39,152
32,269 18,054 3,482 53,805
36,580 5,799 70 42,449

522,624 175,982 5,227 703,833

(Note 24a)

(Kfzt24F )
55,378 9,352 91 64,821
27,859 78,964 61,944 168,767
16,424 24,440 109 40,973
99,661 112,756 62,144 274,561
622,285 288,738 67,371 978,394

ERHELEKE2007/2008H B WM E
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24. Expenditure (Continued) 24, %@
2007 Institute Bz
Employee
benefits Operating
expenses expenses Depreciation 2007 Total
ESER
k-2 BERX i 2007 4828
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BETT BETT BHTT
(Note 25)
(Ktat 25)
Learning and research BERMR
Instruction and research HERARE 402,756 58,719 1,338 462,813
Library E=3 20,382 15,696 519 36,597
Central computing facilities PREIR 30,118 22,012 4,065 56,195
Other academic services H fth 2907 AR S 34,451 5477 61 39,989
487,707 101,904 5,983 595,594
Institutional support Hp R (Note 24a)
(Hist245)
Management and general — AT R 3R 47,480 19,323 89 66,392
Premises and related expenses e REEES 26,562 72,253 60,022 158,837
Students and general education
services BA T —RHE R 14,836 18,338 67 33,241
88,878 109,914 60,178 258,970
Total expenditure 2007 —ETEELHARE 576,585 211,818 66,161 854,564
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24. SEH @)

24. Expenditure (Continued)

(@  Analysis of operating expenses - Institutional support () LEFHON - #IE
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BET T BETT BT BETT
Management and general —RITBERER
Office expenses WAEFZ 7,151 6,713 7,007 8,112
Professional and legal fees BERAEER 482 9,425 461 9,425
General insurance —RERER 927 909 787 808
Auditors’ remuneration BN € 759 623 522 555
Minor equipment and system
implementation AR E i 575 423 575 423
9,894 18,093 9,352 19,323
Premises and related expenses REREREA
Utilities NZE 17,998 17,706 17,472 17,265
Repair and maintenance and
minor works #ie RBERNEITIR 24,512 21,741 24,251 21,436
Premises rental EFEe 9,600 8,990 8,751 8,685
Government rent and rates =i & A 7,260 7,808 7,260 7376
Cleaning services B2R 6,106 5918 6,014 5,853
Security services REBRTS 5,978 5,725 5,978 5,725
Office expenses NN 2,765 3616 2,765 3616
Telecommunications BAEA 1,008 903 973 860
Minor equipment and system
implementation NVRERRZRE 4,668 624 4,668 624
Property insurance MR 407 388 407 388
Notional rental for staff quarters BIREENEEES 425 425 425 425
80,727 73,844 78,964 72,253
Student and general education BAER BB E RS
services
Student hostels expenses BAFEEI W 7,684 8,594 7,684 8,594
Health care centre BRI 2,508 2436 2,508 2,436
Scholarship, bursaries and prizes BES - PELEL
to students e 9,391 5,282 9,241 5,221
Extra-curricular activities RINEE 1,983 1,053 1,983 1,053
Office expenses WAEFT 2,715 771 2,715 771
Others A 309 263 309 263
24,590 18,399 24,440 18,338
25. Employee benefits expenses 25. AR X
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BET T BB BET T BB T
Wages and salaries T& KE 532,997 458,415 498,857 445,819
Unutilised annual leave REEF R 10,605 14,366 9,765 14,366
Gratuities Hm & 19,113 22,692 17,757 22,692
Contributions to MPF scheme Ma&TE S 2 K 8,242 8,401 7,253 8,059
Contributions to superannuation scheme  RIATEE &8 2 5K 37,409 30,440 37,409 30,440
Compensation for loss of office KA 2 f1E 644 228 644 228
Housing benefits FEEEH 34,934 39617 34,934 39617
Other staff related benefits H g SRR 16,103 15,364 15,666 15,364
660,047 589,523 622,285 576,585
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25. Employee benefits expenses (Continued) 25. BRI (@)
(@ Higher paid staff (R) =HEE
Total annual equivalent emoluments irrespective of the RHEENFHSEER (TEEA
funding sources for the higher paid staff are analysed as SRR DA -
follows:

52

Group and Institute EEF0HEz

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
BT BB T
Basic salaries, housing allowances, ¥ - BEEEL - HAb=ERL
other allowances and benefits in kind LEYF = 13,682 10,710
The above emoluments fell within the following bands: L EABR ST
Number of staff {EE2H
2008 2007
Emoluments bands: Bl 4871
$1,800,001 — $1,950,000 1,800,001/ 7T - 1,950,000 7T 2 3
$1,950,001 - $2,100,000 1,950,001 7T — 2,100,000/ 7T 1 B
$2,100,001 - $2,250,000 2,100,001 7T - 2,250,000 7 - 1
$2,250,001 - $2,400,000 2,250,001 7T — 2,400,000 7T 1 -
$2,400,001 - $2,550,000 2,400,001%7T - 2,550,0007%8 7T - -
$2,550,001 - $2,700,000 2,550,001 7T - 2,700,000/ 7T 1 .
$2,700,001 - $2,850,000 2,700,001 7T - 2,850,000 7T 1 -
$2,850,001 — $3,000,000 2,850,001 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T = 1
6 5
(b) Key management personnel compensation (2) FZEEBAEHH
The key management of the Group and the Institute REBNMHBEHFEEEIEABERRE
refers to those senior management having authority NMEAERE - BEMEHEE R
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling BB EREIEAE - P BY
the activities of the Group and the Institute and their DR -

compensations are analysed as follows:

Group and Institute SEIF03BE

2008 2007

$'000 $'000

BT BT

Salaries, wages and allowances T& - HENAEEL 8,281 9,534
Employer’s contribution to retirement

schemes BFHERARE MK 39 59
Provision for gratuities and unutilised

annual leave HmBN & AR L EREF R 2,131 1,138

10,451 10,731
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26. Finance cost

26. MBHEAK

Discounting effect on borrowings

27. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(@) Cash generated from operations

Group and Institute $EEF0Ez

2008
$'000
BT T

BRMAR 2 244

27. ARG BB BRI

(F) #EE4snRE

2007
$'000
BT
280

(Deficit)/surplus for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Fair value gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income
Reversal of deferred income recognised
during the year
Interest income
Finance cost
Exchange differences
Changes in working capital:
Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments
Provision of employee benefits
Accounts payable and accruals
Subventions, grants and donations
received/receivable, net of utilisation
Deferred capital funds

Cash generated from operations

Note
HiaE
REE (B518) 1B#H
A
e 4
HEDE - REREMEER
RAFEFERERERKS R
BENIEEEN N AR 21
A& B A 21
BB F R HERAEZEMA 18
FEMA 21
BERS AR AR 26
N =%
EEESHNEE
FEUARIE - =& RIBHAHRIEA
& B2 F B
JFEA BRIE I FERT /08
BRI E - BEER
B - MREARK 18
RIEEAES
EEELANERS

2008 2007
$000 $'000
BT BT T
(117,535) 87,829
68,484 67,704
42 848
(12,127) (6,599)
(69) -
(515,139) (601,080)
(46,918) (45,559)
244 280
243 (1,777)
(7,121) 13,385
(9,671) (29,281)
133,206 18,923
573,906 672,489
(35,412) (35,375)
32,133 141,787

(2) ERERBHE - HEVE  RENE
Mo T:

(b) In the cash flow statement, the disposal of property, plant

and equipment is analysed as follows:

2008 2007

Note $’000 $'000

Kz BETT BT T

Net book amount FERRESE 4 154 874
Loss on the disposal HEEE (42) (848)
Proceeds from the disposal HE PSR 112 26
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28. Capital commitments 28. BRI
As at 30 June 2008, the Group and Institute had capital RZZBEZENFANA=Z+TH  SEMHRY
commitments on leasehold improvements, furniture and HEMERE  HRAREBNEIREN
fixtures as follows: N

Group and Institute SEEIFI3BE

2008 2007

$'000 $'000

BT T BT

Contracted but not provided for BELEREE 28,735 10,163

Authorised but not contracted for BHEERELD 2,987 2,720

31,722 12,883

29. Commitments under operating leases 29. BHMHEZ AN
(@ As at 30 June 2008, the Group and Institute had future (F) RZZ2EENFERA=ZTH  £EEAH
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BREMESR N AIREEEHE
cancellable operating leases in respect of Town Centre as ZARREIEMEE T RARREAT -

follows:

Group and Institute SEIF03pz

2008 2007

$'000 $'000

BT BT

Within one year —ER 8,040 8,040

After one year but no later than five years F_EERAFH 1,340 9,380

9,380 17,420

Operating lease charges for the year FEMEEREIN 8,040 7,688
(b) As at 30 June 2008, the Group and Institute had future (Z) RZZZENFEAA=1H SEMH
aggregate minimum lease receipts under operating leases ARBHEME A HEEEERE

in respect of rental properties as follows: ZARREEHERRARRENT ¢

Group and Institute SEIF0¥BE

2008 2007

$'000 $'000

BEFTT BT

Within one year —F RN 327 585

After one year but no later than five years =2 EAFR 22 154

349 739

Contingent-based rent recognised during the year was Nil EAFERNERNIARSRBEE T
(2007: $2K). —TTLF BB T -
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30. Related party transactions

Other than those disclosed in Notes 4, 9 (c), 17 and 25 (b) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Institute undertook the

following significant transactions with the HKIEd SCPE during

the year:

(@) Commitment under operating leases

Included in Note 29 (a), certain operating lease rentals for
office premises of the HKIEd will be absorbed by the HKIEd

SCPE for its use as follows:

30. Bl %2 5

BTHReBREmEs -9 (R) 17K
25 (2) PR EAN - BB F R G BREH
BBERETTIERRS °

(F) =EREAE
FEMEE29 (F) o BB T E
R B I EHE Bl A
ERmAELT :

Group and Institute 5 EIF13Bz

Within one year
After one year but no later than five years

(b)  Other transactions

—FR

E_EZENFAN

2008 2007
$'000 $000
BET T BT
2,355 2343
393 2,734
2,748 5,077

(2) Hib5

Group and Institute EEF0HR

Interest income

Interest expense

Office expenses under “Institutional support”

- Service fee expenses related to
contribution to the Institute’s scholarly
activities, fund-raising activities and the
development of the blueprint

Office expenses under “Learning and research”

- Service fee to printing unit

Service and management fee income

- Staff cost recharged for human resources
support

- Outsourced teaching fee income and
administrative fee income

Rental income

Library card income

FBHA
FERAX

2008 2007

Note $’000 $'000

Kzt BET T BT T

(@) 58 -
(a) (15) (95)

FIA THBE xR | AP AERX

- HRAHRNEINES - FH05H
MEARBEEBOREERZ (b) - (1,500)
FIA [HE K] AHHAERY

- BT ERIEM A ART B © (500) (500)
RIS R EBEBUA

- BANBRZIEKERESKRA (d) 3,942 24,040
- SMBBBBRARITRERA (e) 7,144 5,809
ALBA (f) 5,596 4818
BEEFZRA (@ 12 125
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30. Bl S #)

30. Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) Other transactions (Continued) (Z) EMx5 (&)
Note: (a) Interest was charged at the rate at monthly savings account interest rate quoted by bank on the amount due from the HKIEd SCPE.

(b) Service fee expenses related to contribution to the Institute’s scholarly activities, fund-raising activities and the development of the blueprint were
charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties.

() Service fee to printing unit was charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties.
(d) Staff cost was recharged at actual cost of seconded staff.

(e) Outsourced teaching fee income was charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties. Outsourced administrative fee
income was charged at actual cost incurred.

(f) Rental income was charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties.

(g)  Library card income was charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties.
Bist o ()  FISIRENFFEHE Bl 2 AU RITE A B EFAFIEE -

(Z)  HERHGTREMEE) - EF0EBFE R A A RS BRI IR E T B FLER -

(R)  #a T DRI EE L AR 7% B T5 AR 1% & 75 a8 Y 1A SKHACER =

(T) EEKFRHEFERNERKAWKD o

(R) SN BIA TIRRIE & 7 i3k AR UCER o ShHIEITTIR B A IR P EE S Y BB ARG TEL ©

(B) MHERWATIRIZE T 55 R

(B) [EZFBUWATIIRIZE T 17735 RS

(©) Net assets transfer (R) FEEMNEY

WA TS IMRMI S TR ER - BB iR
“EERFLA-ANRERE - %H

As disclosed in Note 5 in the financial statements, the
funds, assets and liabilities transferred to the HKIEd SCPE

at the Institute’s net book value as at 1 July 2006 are as Be BERBEEBREFEHNS
follows: Bran T
$'000
BT T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets EMEEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - RAE NI 357
Current assets nEEE
Sundry deposits ¥ERE 123
Tuition fees and accounts receivable, net B5 K EURERIB R 6,346
Current account with the HKIEd SCPE BB BT BB M RER P 3,453
Total assets BER 10,279
FUNDS =k
Reserves & 7,856
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities nEaE
Accounts payable and accruals FETBRIE I FE 5T IR 2,124
Fees in advance FEWER 299
Total funds and liabilities B RAERER 10,279
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Trustee’s Report

15 it N\ R 7
For the year ended 30 June 2008
BE_ZT)\FRA=THIFE

The trustee presents its annual report and the financial statements of
The Hong Kong Institute of Education Superannuation Scheme (“the
Scheme”) for the year ended 30 June 2008.

Introduction

The Scheme was established on 1 September 1995 to provide benefits
on retirement, death, ill-health and termination of employment
to its Scheme Members. It was registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (‘ORSO”) on 12

December 1995.

There were 350 Scheme Members at the end of June 2008. Total
contributions paid and payable into the Scheme during the year
ended 30 June 2008 amounted to HK$32 million. Of this, Scheme
Members and employer contributed at the rate of 5% and 15% of the

Scheme Members’ salaries respectively.

The assets of the Scheme were invested in Sub-Funds of the Allianz
Global Investors Choice Fund including RCM Balanced Fund (Ordinary
Class - A), RCM Capital Stable Fund (Ordinary Class - A), RCM Growth
Fund (Ordinary Class - A), RCM Stable Growth Fund (Ordinary Class -
A), RCM HKS Liquidity Fund (Ordinary Class) and Absolute Return Fund
(Ordinary Class - A). The assets of the Scheme were also invested in
Sub-Funds of the Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund (Ordinary Units)
including Balanced Fund, Capital Stable Fund, Growth Fund, Stable
Growth Fund and US Dollar Money Fund. Fidelity Advantage Portfolio
Fund is a unit trust established as an umbrella fund managed by FIL
Limited (formerly known as “Fidelity International Limited”). The net

asset value of the Scheme as at 30 June 2008 was HK$388 million.

BRHE R ATRETE (CATERE [AFE])
MERARRRBEZE _TTN\FA=THLLF
EHRFHRE R BH®RE

95
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REGRIK - FIR - BB RBERRE - ]FTEIER
—NMNAAF+Z A+ ZHIRE (BRERRETENE
By (AT RSHE GRIREHENEFID ) BT - oK
EfFE -

A

/7

HEZZSTNFA=TAHIL  FTENERE=
Bht& BE_TZN\FAA=THILFE
HAHEEMREMNNERAER=T 8%
T e AEIKERNERBERFEKEFHFENEDZ
T MEFERFBARFEKEFEHNES Z
+TH-
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Trustee

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, the trustee, is
responsible for the administration and investment policy of the
Scheme.

Membership

Membership of the Scheme is a condition of employment for all
employees hired on superannuable terms on or after 1 September
1995 who have not elected to join the MPF Scheme.

Membership of the Scheme is optional for employees who transferred
to the Institute from the Civil Service subject to the Pensions (Special
Provisions) (The Hong Kong Institute of Education) Ordinance
("Pension (Special) Ordinance”) on or after 1 September 1995. Only
those who opted for the Frozen Pension Scheme would be eligible to

become members of the Scheme.

An analysis of the number of Scheme Members is as follows:

fF 7t A

EREAESEBETERSE (EM) ARAREE
REFEMEERIRERK -

8

AR —NANEFNA —BHUERBAEE HEHRE
AmMABARES TRESTENMARE - 9A
ARG -

ERE-NNAFNA —BINEHAKEERH
#hei = CRIK (FRIGF) (BEHRERR) K
) RERE - RIDIAAEH B BT AR ERE -
HERERBEBRGERAREFTEE - TAIKAARF

gk E -

THREEINE ABBDHN

Active members at beginning of the year FERIARAKE

New member joining FMAHIKE

Transfer members BB

Members leaving prior to retirement TERIRATBEF T ZIBIAK &
Retired members EIRIREIKE

Active members at end of the year FEKRERNKE
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Officers and Advisors FFANL B

Employer: The Hong Kong Institute of Education B* : BBEREZR
Trustee: HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited (EEPNE [ LHBEERS (M) BRAR
Scheme administrator: HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited STEIEA - EERBEFERS (BM) BRARE
Auditors: PricewaterhouseCoopers TZELAD BERKBERTAN ST

Certified Public Accountants BE TR
Enquiries: Any enquiry regarding the Scheme should be B FrIEEHRHA

addressed to:

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited E LSRR (M) BRRAR]
No.1 Queen’s Road, Central BB
Hong Kong ERREBPIHR

For and on behalf of the Trustee, REEFTA

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited BRBETERSE (M) BIRAAE

Hong Kong, 12 December 2008 HE ZFTT)N\F+=ZA+=H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T 3 % B B e A

To the trustee of the Hong Kong Institute of Education Superannuation Scheme (the “Scheme”)

HEBHE SR AERETE ([AFE]) EEA

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme set out on
pages 57 to 82, which comprise the statement of net assets available
for benefits as at 30 June 2008, and the revenue statement, statement
of movement in capital account and cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory notes.

Trustee’s responsibility for the financial
statements

The Trustee of the Scheme is responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the "ORSO"). This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 20 of the ORSO, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability

to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Scheme's preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Scheme’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Trustee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme as at 30 June
2008 and of its financial transactions and cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and the ORSO.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 12 December 2008
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Statement of Net Assets Available for Benefits
A {5 5 A A

As at 30 June 7SA=+H

Note 2008 2007
HiaE —EEN\E —ETEF
ASSETS EE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEIERREBRSREED
B A E 4 391,088,276 365,300,326
Accounts and other receivables FEUBRTE & b fE Uk Fk I8 78 197,827
Cash at banks RITIFER 2,169,543 1,367,812
Total assets HMEE 393,257,897 366,865,965
LIABILITIES aE
Accounts payable FETBRETR 4,816,612 2,232,490
Net assets available for benefits attributable to FSTEIREEE T HENEEEE
Scheme Members 388,441,285 364,633,475
Represented by: HEEHRR
Scheme Members' balances FHEIK B W& 388,441,285 364,633,475

388,441,285 364,633,475

The notes on pages 66 to 80 are an integral part of these financial statements.

FNTARENF A RAHTEHRRAALED

For and on behalf of the Trustee, RRETA
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited EEREBESTRYE (2N BRAE
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Revenue Statement

W 7% 7%
Year ended 30 June

Note 2008 2007
Bt —BENE ZETEHF
Investment income RERA
Interest on cash deposits TEFF B 12,262 39,039
Net fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through RN TEYIRRE B S RE IR
profit or loss B EENATEFRE 6,556,687 62,964,906
Management fee rebate income BB OHNKA 413,345 354,157
6,982,294 63,358,102
Expenses 53 5
Trustee and custodian fees EEAFTEEAERR (1,267,712) (1,070,805)
Administration fee THER (70,750) (79,000)
Miscellaneous expenses AR (260) (234)
Unrealised exchange loss REIE K EE (5,233) (42,524)
(1,343,955) (1,192,563)
Net income for the year AEEFRA 5,638,339 62,165,539

The notes on pages 66 to 80 are an integral part of these financial statements.

FENTARENTBHMERERTEHREK AR D
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Statement of Movement in Capital Account

As at 30 June R7<A=+H

2008 2007

—sENE —ETte

Opening net assets available for benefits FYIERENNEEFE 364,633,475 296,167,845

Contributions received and receivable B0 e FE R B 3R

Normal contributions from employer EEEHHRK 24,319,348 16,631,573
Normal contributions from Scheme Members HEI B IEH R 8,106,449 5,543,858

Benefits paid in respect of leavers BB B & F) (14,256,326) (15,875,340)
Amount transferred from revenue statement R AN RAEEE 5,638,339 62,165,539
Closing net assets available for benefits FRAJEARANNEEFE 388,441,285 364,633,475

The notes on pages 66 to 80 are an integral part of these financial statements.
FNTARENFABMERAMIEIRRAAL A -
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Cash Flow Statement
Bl &I B %

As at 30 June 7XA=+H

Cash flows from operating activities

Net investment return for the year

Adjustments for:

Net fair value losses on financial assts at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest income

Changes in working capital:

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts payables

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of financial assts at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from sale of financial assts at fair value through
profit or loss
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Contributions received
Benefits paid

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year
- Cash at banks

The notes on pages 66 to 80 are an integral part of these financial statements.

FENTANENTEAM BB RRAEKED

2008
—EENE

EEEBNESTE
AEFHZEFRE 5,638,339
FRIFE:
BRAFENEREREBREREEN

IS EEN AT EFEER (6,556,687)
FEMWA (12,263)
BIEEDEH
FE W BR IR I Eo At FE WGR IR 197,749
FEHERIE 2,584,122
BEEBEENRSFH 1,851,260
BREEZBENESHE
BARATEYIEREBKRGEER  (62,722,620)

BRENGIEEE
HERATENRRERRER

BRIBMB I EER TSR 43,491,357
BUF B 12,263
WEXBFTRARR S5 (19,219,000)
RETHNRSRE
Bt 32,425,797
BASER (14,256,326)
BEREEAMINS FHE 18,169,471
RERBESEEWHNEINTEE 801,731
FONHRSRESEEY 1,367,812
FRNBERASZEY

- IRITIFFK 2,169,543

2007
—EELE

62,165,539

(62,964,906)
(39,039)

(196,665)
1,197,733

162,662

(335,508,689)

329,786,682
39,039

(5,682,968)

22,175,431
(15,875,340)

6,300,091

779,785
588,027

1,367,812
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Description of the Scheme

General

The operation of the Scheme is governed by the Trust Deed
dated 19 October 1995. The Scheme was registered under
section 18 of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (“ORSO") on 12 December 1995.

The Scheme is a defined contribution scheme. Members of
the Scheme (“Scheme Members") contributed 5% of their basic
monthly salary to the Scheme and benefits are paid to them on
their retirement or on leaving employment subject to certain

conditions as stipulated in the Trust Deed.

With the implementation of the Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000 in Hong
Kong, The Hong Kong Institute of Education (“the Institute”)
also participates in a master trust MPF scheme operated by
an independent service provider (“the MPF Scheme”). As the
Scheme is an MPF-exempted recognised ORSO scheme, all
the employees who joined the Institute before 1 December
2000 on superannuable terms were given the option to elect
between the Scheme and MPF Scheme.

The financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Trustee on 12 December 2008.

Summary of principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.
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2.1

Summary of principal accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Scheme have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"), a collective term that includes all applicable
individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes. The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Scheme’s accounting policies. There is
no area involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements.

(@) Standards and amendment effective from 1 July 2007 and

relevant to the Scheme's operations

HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments: Disclosures’, and the
complementary amendment to HKAS 1, “Presentation of
financial statements — Capital disclosures”, are mandatory
for the Scheme’s annual accounting year commencing
on 1 July 2007 which the Scheme has adopted in these
financial statements. HKFRS 7 introduces new disclosures
to improve the information about financial instruments.
[t requires the disclosure of qualitative and quantitative
information about exposure to risks arising from financial
instruments, including specified minimum disclosures
about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including
sensitivity analysis to market risk. The amendment to
HKAS 1 introduces disclosures about the level of an
entity’s capital and how it manages capital. The adoption
of HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 does not
result in any significant impact on the classification and
valuation of the Scheme’s financial instruments other

than certain additional disclosures.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards (collectively, the “Amendments”)
have been published that are mandatory for the Scheme’s
accounting periods commencing on 1 July 2008 or later.
Some of the Amendments are relevant and applicable
to the Scheme. However, they have not been early
adopted in these financial statements. The Scheme has
commenced, but not yet completed, an assessment of
the impact of the applicable Amendments on its results of
operations and financial position. The management are
of the view that the impact on the financial statements
would not be significant other than certain additional

disclosures.

2.2  Foreign currency translation

68 |

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the
Scheme are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Scheme operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Scheme’s

functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the revenue statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, are
recognised in the revenue statement as part of the fair

value gain or loss.
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2.3

2.4

Summary of principal accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Scheme classified its investments in unit trusts as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Scheme commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in the revenue
statement. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value
are included in the revenue statement in the period in which
they arise. Investments are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Scheme has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.

Investments in unit trusts are fair valued based on quoted bid

prices.

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Scheme will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate, unless the discounting effect is insignificant. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the revenue statement. When a receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the

revenue statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, unless the discounting effect is insignificant.
They are classified as current liabilities unless the Scheme has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of liability at least 12

months after the balance sheet date.

Income recognition

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with
through the revenue statement in the period in which they

arise.

Interest income on deposit is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Management fee rebate income is recognised when the right

to receive income is established.

Sundry income is recognised on an accruals basis.

Contributions

Contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Benefits

Benefits paid and payable represent all benefit claims
determined by the Trustee to be valid in respect of the Scheme
during the year in respect of Scheme Members who have left
the Scheme and are accounted for on an accruals basis. No
provision is made in the financial statements for benefits that
will become payable to existing members of the Scheme in the

future.
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2.10

2.11

3.1

Summary of principal accounting policies
(Continued)

Obligations to pay retirement benefits in the future

Details of the Scheme’s obligations to pay retirement benefits
in the future are set out in note 8. No provision is made in
the financial statements for this liability except to the extent
indicated in note 2.6. The terms “aggregate vested liability”
and “aggregate past service liability”, as used in note 8, have
the same meaning as defined in section 2(1) of the ORSO. They

may be broadly defined as follows:

Vested liabilities relate primarily to those benefits that would be
payable if an employee had voluntarily resigned and thereby
ceased to be employed on the date of valuation.

Past service liabilities represent the aggregate of contributions
paid and payable by the employer and the Scheme Members,
together with any declared investment return on those

contributions on the date of valuation.

For the full definition of these terms, reference should be made
to the ORSO.

Transfer values

Transfer values are accounted for on the actual date of transfer.

Financial risk and scheme asset risk
management

Financial risk factors

The Scheme's objective is to achieve capital growth through
investing in a selection of funds managed by RCM Asia Pacific
Limited and FIL Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
(previously known as “Fidelity Investments Management (H.K)
Ltd").
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3.

3.1

72

Financial risk and scheme asset risk 3. Bt m B K it EE R B
management (Continued) FH (g)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMEBEEENZE (&)
The Scheme is exposed to market price risk, interest rate risk, AHAEEERBEVBIAMARTSE
credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign exchange risk arising from BAMEEE - RBESMINERE
the financial instruments it holds. The risk management policies A EIFFRANER LSRR RRER
employed by the Scheme to manage these risks are discussed BRI -
below.
(@) Market price risk () mHERRR
The Scheme is subject to market price risk in relation RErER BB EAESMI TS
to its investment in units trusts for prices in the future BRERMTE  HEfETESH
are uncertain. The units in the underlying fund are EHESTEERER - HAESH
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit BRI HENEEFERPESE
or loss in the statement of net assets available for RN TEYR R E B R
benefits. The Scheme’s market price risk is managed MBEE - RtElmiBERERE
through () deliberate investment funds selection and (i) BATAHAER « () HIREESNRE
diversification of the investment portfolio. BUGE - R (i) HIREBSH DR
As at year end, the overall market price exposure is as R - BEmSERAT
follows:
As at 30 June 2008 As at 30 June 2007
—EBE/)N\EFERA=1H —BEtERA=1H
Fair Value % of net assets Fair Value % of net assets
A¥E  EEE AVE  BERE
Aot Aott
HKS & HKS &%
Financial assets at fair value through 32 A (&S8R RiE Bk R
profit or loss BRI E E 15,097,776 4% 14,245,918 4%
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3.1

Financial risk and scheme asset risk

management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(@)  Market price risk (continued)

The table below summarises the impact of increases/
decreases from the unit trusts underlying benchmark on
the Scheme’s net assets attributable to Scheme Members
at 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007. The analysis is based
on the assumption that the index component within the
benchmark increases/decreases by 5% (2007: 5%), with all
other variables held constant and that the fair value of the

Scheme’s investment moved according to the historical

correlation with the index.

i) Allianz Choice Fund
Balanced Fund

Capital Stable Fund

Benchmark Components

FTSE HK

HSBC HKD (Total return)

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Europe Index

FTSE Japan Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index (USD hedged)

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index (USD)

FTSE HK

HSBC HKD (Total return)

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Europe Index

FTSE Japan Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index (USD hedged)

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index (USD)

i) BEERES

BEES

3. B & i K it 3 M B

BH ()
3.1 WMBEEHEZE &)

() mEERERE (&)

TERERE—ZTN\FN_FTTLF
NA=TA - BuEEsAE2E
IR _ BT T B BIRK B IS AGT
FEENTE - HANNERERS
ZHERARIEEAK D LT/ TBE% »
FRE BB TE  ARAGTE
BENRHETIRR BRI E LR

RS -

Benchmark increase/
decrease by 5%

SEEFEMG

SR EFHITR5%

Impact on net assets
available for benefits
attributable to Scheme

Members

HEt IR B REAE T EFIE

2008
—RENF

BREEEY
[ELIRITHE T (BEER)
BRI
= B BN TR
B AAEH
BRI A A
(B~ FERIN
TEMSRE Mt R ES R
(Eem)
TEME B RBUFEHFIER
(=7T)
s
ELIRITET (LK)
BRI IE
= BN
E R AAEH
BRI AEES
(B - BFERIN
TEMERE Y R ES IR
(Eem)
TEME B RBUFEFIER
(=7T)

3,298,624

135,918

BENRE
2007
ZEELF

3,796,560

159,488
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3.1

74

Financial risk and scheme asset risk

management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market price risk (continued)

Benchmark Components

i) Allianz Choice Fund (continued)
Growth Fund FTSE HK

HSBC HKD (Total return)

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Europe Index

FTSE Japan Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index (USD hedged)

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index (USD)

FTSE HK

HSBC HKD (Total return)

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Europe Index

FTSE Japan Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index (USD hedged)

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index (USD)

Absolute Return Fund FTSE all world

Stable Growth Fund

ii)Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund
Balanced Fund FTSE AW North America Index
FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index
FTSE AW Europe Index
Custom Hong Kong index
(consisting of 90% FTSE AW
Hong Kong Index & 10%
HSBC Holdings)
FTSE AW Japan Index
Citigroup World Government
Bond Index

3. B E B Rl & & E b
B ()

3.1 MEEEFNZE (%)

() mEERERRE (&)

Benchmark increase/
decrease by 5%

S8 FFHITB5%
Impact on net assets
available for benefits
attributable to Scheme
Members

$iat 81 A S B T SR FiE
BENTE

2008 2007
—BRN\F  CTTLE

SZEERH

i) BEERES (B)

ERESD

RERREE ERDTE

BiZRIsHESL  FTSEall world

BERES
[E L ER1TBIT (BEH)
BRI
=R BN
B AAEH
ERTARIER
(BA - BBRIN)
TEIEE @t BT EHF IR
(ZETs)
TEIESE @t REFESFIER
(%m)

2,340,664 2,263,104

342,073 587,092
PELIRITAIT (AER)
BERILEEE
= R EUMNIEE
=R H AR
BRI ABIEE
(BZA - FERIN)
TEME SR E R R 25 15 8L
(EEm)
TEMSE Bt R ES IR R
(%7T)

16,764 13,796

i EEEBREEAGES

BEES
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3.1

Financial risk and scheme asset risk

management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(@)  Market price risk (continued)

Benchmark Components

i) Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund (continued)

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Europe Index

Custom Hong Kong Index
(consisting of 90% FTSE AW
Hong Kong Index & 10%
HSBC Holdings)

FTSE AW Japan Index

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

FSE AW Europe Index

Custom Hong Kong Index
(consisting of 90% FTSE AW
Hong Kong Index & 10%
HSBC Holdings)

FTSE AW Japan Index

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

FSE AW Europe Index

Custom Hong Kong Index
(consisting of 90% FTSE AW
Hong Kong Index & 10%
HSBC Holdings)

FTSE AW Japan Index

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index

Capital Stable Fund

Growth Fund

Stable Growth Fund

3. B & i K it BB M B

BHE ()
3.1 BfEm g% (%)

() mEERERRE (&)

Benchmark increase/
decrease by 5%

S8 FHITB5%
Impact on net assets
available for benefits
attributable to Scheme
Members

¥iat 1A S B T SR FE
BENRE

2007
D =

e

2008
—sBNE

iEEEEREASES (B)

BARERES

ERESD

FEERED

ERFLEEH

BRI ARIER
(A7 - FHBERIN

EERFEUMNIEE

EHEEBER
(B3E90% B R BB IR EUM
10%0E & 1% )

442,046 476,246

=R AR
TEMSER B R ESIRE

ERFLEEH
ERFARIEH
(A7 - FHBERIN
EERFBUMIEE
EHEBER
(E3E90% B 15 &8 2 8
10%0E & 1% )

2,761,035 2,033,229

=R B AR
TEMSRE R AR R

ERLEEH

BRI ARIE
(BZ - FBERIN

EERFEUMIEE

EHEEBER
(E3E90% B 5 &8 2 8
10%0E & 2% )

492,984 525,583

=R BAER
TEMSE B R AR
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3.1

76 |

Financial risk and scheme asset risk
management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Scheme’s financial assets and liabilities
are non-interest bearing; as a result, the Scheme is not
subject to significant risk due to fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates. Accordingly, in
the opinion of the Trustee, the changes in market interest
rates do not have a significant impact on the Scheme’s
income and operating cash flows and no sensitivity

analysis is performed.

(©) Creditrisk

The Scheme is potentially subject to concentration of
credit risks which consist principally of balances with
investment managers and bank balances. Their credit risk
is limited because the counterparties are reputable and
creditworthy financial institutions. As such, the credit risk

is considered minimal.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance

sheet.

(d) Liquidity risk
The Scheme is exposed to unexpected withdrawal of cash
benefits. It manages the risk by investing the majority of
its assets in investments that are traded in active markets

and can be readily liquidated.
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3.1

Financial risk and scheme asset risk

management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Scheme's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the

impact of discounting is not significant.

3.1

S 5 I B et 20 ML B

B (®)

MBI B (#)

(T) RBESRR (&)

TRARENUHABKEERRE
R AHE A AR R A
BRI BRI T - LT RENEEE R

BRRMRABDRE -
CELGN - B 218 A AR EIRY  ER AR

iy

4H§ Iﬂli

ERERREE

R

Less than 1 year DPRA—F

Accounts payable FERTARIE

Entitlement payables to bankrupt FE IR EERY B/E IR HETEIRK B
members/resigned members BB RIR

Unpaid benefits ESOEE

Other payables E AR

Net assets available for benefits

(e)

BE RISV RN -V

attributable to Scheme Members

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises where future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the Scheme’s
functional currency. The Scheme holds assets primarily
in United States dollars. As Hong Kong dollars is pegged
to United State dollars under the Linked Exchange Rate
System, the foreign exchange exposure between United
States dollars and Hong Kong dollars is therefore limited.
In the opinion of the Trustee, the Scheme will not be
exposed to significant exchange rate risk exposure and

no sensitivity analysis is performed accordingly.

2008
—EENF
HK$ B

1,604,650
2,910,259
196,000
105,703

388,441,285
393,357,897

(&) SMERER

2007
It A
HKS B

1,008,219

805,924
318,000
100,347
364,633,475
366,865,965

SMNE R 2R B FE AR ET BRI REE
BREUMARREERS @ MEHER
MEERRAE - AtEIRENEEE
ERUAETTREM - ANEBEER
T BTTEERITTE - BUBTTHETT
MISNE BB FRIE © (FSREARS - AT

| TAZEBRNINER R -

HEITRRMEDT o

AR B
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3.2

3.8

78

Financial risk and scheme asset risk
management (Continued)

Scheme assets risk management

The Scheme's objectives when managing assets are to
safeguard the quality of the Scheme’s assets in terms of
liquidity, sufficiency and adequacy so as to meet the benefits
of the Scheme Members.

In order to achieve its objectives, the Scheme’s investments
are properly managed by quality professional investment
managers under the close review by the Institute.

Fair value estimation

Investments in unit trusts are fair valued based on quoted bid

prices.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

3.2

3.3

B 7 b K w1 E B
EHl ()

it 3 B E Y M i B
AAEEEREESTENBERRNRD
- RRUEMEHNE=FERERAEE
EMEZ AR EIREHRER -

RTEINHEBER  AFEEBHSEEREN
BERRERE  aHGROTIEE NET

HEEE -

LA
BUERESNRERBERREFELSE
NFHEFIER

1% o PAE Y e J& 725 208 WAt 5¢
Jiet B 1) 54 5

BHE ;
mRERES :

Units in:
Allianz Choice Fund:
- RCM Balanced Fund
(Ordinary Class A)
- RCM Capital Stable Fund
(Ordinary Class A)
- RCM Growth Fund
(Ordinary Class A)
- RCM Stable Growth Fund
(Ordinary Class A)
- RCM HKS Liquidity Fund
(Ordinary Class)
- RCM Absolute Return Fund

-HEES (BB A)

-IBEEAES (FEA)

-EEES (BEBA)

-RERRES (BBA)

-BRBES (FEA)

(Ordinary Class A) - BiZLHES (L@ A)
Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund: EEEUREEASES
Ordinary Unit: LRI Eg -

- Balanced Fund -HEEe
- Capital Stable Fund -BARERES
- Growth Fund -ERES
- Stable Growth Fund - PR RES
- US Dollar Money Fund -ETEBES

Maximum exposure to credit risk EERBOREEE
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2008 2007
—BENE B
107,280,002 104,062,413
10,521,165 10,059,507
56,617,909 48,862,355
16,919,096 22,762,174
17,045,076 16,643,223
2,398,910 1,713,467
94,912,951 85,258,650
8,419,920 9,819,510
51,130,283 39,100,552
8,882,598 10,407,581
16,960,366 16,610,894
365,300,326

391,088,276



Administration expenses

During the year, certain expenses, including audit fee and
actuarial fee, of the Scheme were borne by the Hong Kong
Institute of Education, which will continue to pay for these

expenses until the number of Scheme’s Members reaches 500.

The auditor's remuneration of HK$50,000 (2007: HK$49,000) for
the year has been absorbed by the employer, The Hong Kong
Institute of Education.

Tax status of the Scheme

The Scheme is registered under the ORSO Ordinance, and
is therefore a recognised scheme for Hong Kong profits tax
purposes. The policy of the Inland Revenue Department
("IRD"), as set out in IRD Practice Note No 23, is that “recognised
retirement schemes and their trustees are not considered to be
subject to profits tax on their investment income”. Accordingly,
no provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the

Scheme’s financial statements.

Forfeitures

The Superannuation and MPF Schemes Management Committee
has resolved to adopt the Actuary’s recommendation that the
forfeited benefits from the Scheme Members leaving the
Scheme prior to reaching full vesting be allocated to the
scheme reserve. The scheme reserve may be used to pay
the scheme expense and be reallocated among the Scheme
Members of the Scheme at the direction of the Trustee.

Accumulated scheme benefits

The aggregate vested liability and the aggregate past service
liability for the Scheme amounted to HK$359,030,116 (2007:
HK$325,328,858) and HK$388,441,285 (2007: HK$364,633,475)
respectively as at 30 June 2008.

frgc#

FAXGENRLER (BRZHEERE
BE) MBEAEHERRAE  BEHRR
PR N ELER  EEIIKEN

ABGERRIBARIE

RNEFENZEEEN £ 50,0008 7T (—ZBF
+4 49,000 T) CHETEAHRE S
B o

A 5t ) by 25 1

A EIRE CGRIRETEIED]) - =&
ANEHFRANRAKSTE - REF
BT H% B B % e A1 55 23 5% P B Y X S IR
R [RANEKRESFTEREEEANKR
BRAEBBEMANER] o Bt - AEHE
W AP B REF BAEHIEREE -

JHE 2R 2 TR 1 0 B A A

AETHEBESTEEEZEEERER
MIBEMER - LR EKBEREZHE
BRRGEN AR TS - MEBAERG
REMREHKET  BBEABHE
oo FFEIRERT AR M EMAX - I
AIZERARNETR - EtEIK B RER
2 BC

R ATt # 1 A

E-ZZNERA=Z1+H  AHEH
RERABEMBERZKRAED H
%369,030,116 BT (ZTTLF :
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9. Related party transactions

80

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability

to control the other party or exercise significant influence over

the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Other than as disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements,

during the vyear, the following significant related party

transactions are carried out with related parties:

(@

Transactions with the Investment Managers

The financial assets in the Scheme are managed by FIL
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited and RCM
The
Investment Managers provide investment management

Asia Pacific Limited (the “Investment Managers”).

services to the Scheme and receive in return of

management fees.

The Scheme also received management fee rebate from
the Investment Managers of HK$413,345 for the year
(2007: HK$354,157).

Transactions with the Trustee and its fellow subsidiary

The Scheme engages HSBC Institution Trust Services
(Asia) Limited (the “Trustee”) to provide secretarial,

administrative and custodian services for a fee.

The Scheme also has the following transaction and
balance with a fellow subsidiary of the Trustee:

9.
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Bank interest income received

Cash and deposits held at year end
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Compliance Report by the Auditor
BRIl AR A

To the trustee of the Hong Kong Institute of Education Superannuation Scheme (the “Scheme”)

HEBHE SR AEREE ([AFE]) EEA

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the
year ended 30 June 2008 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and have issued an unqualified

auditor’s report thereon dated 12 December 2008.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance ("ORSQ"), we are required to report whether the

Scheme complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Respective responsibilities of the trustee and
auditor

The ORSO requires the trustee to ensure that:
a properaccounts and records are kept as regards all assets, liabilities

and financial transactions of the Scheme;

b contributions are made in accordance with the terms of the

Scheme;

c the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment,
charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those specified in
section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

d the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied with.
It is our responsibility to report on the Scheme’s compliance with the

above requirements based on the results of the procedures performed

by us.
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Basis of conclusion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong Kong

Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements

Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and

with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit or retirement schemes”

issued by the HKICPA. We have performed such procedures as we

considered necessary for the purpose of reporting on the Scheme’s

compliance with the above requirements.

Conclusion

Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

a

proper accounts and records have been kept during the year
ended 30 June 2008 as regards all assets, liabilities and financial

transactions of the Scheme;

contributions have been made in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme during the year ended 30 June 2008 and at 30 June
2008 there was no shortfall between the Scheme’s assets and the

Scheme's aggregate vested liability;

at 30 June 2008 the assets of the Scheme were not subject to any
assignment, charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for
those specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

at 31 October 2007, 29 February 2008 and 30 June 2008 the
requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been complied
with.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 12 December 2008
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